AUDIT REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF
BHUTAN TELECOM LIMITED

PERIOD: 1ST JANUARY 2021 to 31ST DECEMBER 2021

FEBRUARY 2022

B

L} ar
Your Finangcial Solution

AUDITEDBY: KARMA & ASSOCIATE
BUILDING 109, FLAT 302, TABA LAM 14, LOWER TABA, THIMPHU;
TELEPHONE # 02365301MOBILENQ.17113385
Email: kassociate20 9@gmail.com




TITLE SHEET

Title:

Chairman of the Board

Mr. Pema L Dorji, Dept. of Immigration
(CID No.11407001126)

=

Head of the Agency:

Mr. Karma Jurme, CEO
(CID No.11503000632)

Drawing & Disbursing
Officer:

Financial Audit Report of Bhutan Telecom Limited, Thimphu T

——

Authorized/Joint Signatories:

|

1. Mr. Chendra Dorji, General Manager, Finance,
(CID No.10807001758)

2. Mr. Phuntsho, General Manager, CSD ;
{ CID No.11004000755).

3. M. Jichen Thinley, General Manager, CPS;
(CID No. 11915000455).

4. Mr. Jambay Sither, General Manager, Operations;
(CID No.11608002286)

5. Mr. Dawa Sonam, General Manager, IT;
(CID No. 11410001703).

6. Mr. Jigme Thinley, General Manager, Marketing;
(CID No.11512004080).

7. Mr. Sangay Wangdi, Director Business;
(CID No. 11007001270).

8. Mr. Karma Tshewang, Director Technical;
(CID No. 10711001986).

9. Mr. Karma Jurme, CEO;
(CID No.11503000632).

Finance Personnel:

1. Mr. Chendra Dorji, General Manager, Finance,
| (CID No.10807001758)

2. Mr. Chokey Wangchuk, AGM, Accounts Section
(CID 11503001270)
3. Mr. Ugyen. Manager, Finance;

(CID No. 10102002346)

1st January to 31st December 2021

Planning: 28th - 9th February 2022
Field Audit: 2nd - 12th February 2022

1. Mr. Chimmi Dorji, FCCA, Managing Partner,

| 2. Mr. Pemba Tshering, Team Leader,

Period Audited:
Schedule of Audit:
Karma & Associates:
CID No. 10505000244
| Composition of Audit Team: CID No. 10601001356

3. Mr. Tenzin Dorji, Auditor,
CID No. 10716001053

4. Mr. Kinley Rinzin, Auditor,
CID No. 10608003387

Supervising Officer & Focal
Person:

Mr. Chimmi Dorji, FCCA, Managing Partner,
CID No. 10505000244
Email: kassociate2019@gmail.com

Engagement Letter:

RAA(SA-07)/COAD/2021/2316
Dated: 10th December 2021

Date of Audit Exit Meeting:

11th February 2022




AASBB:
ACCA:
BAS:
BFRS:
BTL
CEO:
CIB:
CID:
CPA;
DBC:
DHI
DCCL
DRP
EIR:
EPS:
F&A:
FVTOCI:
FVTPL:
GAAP:
TIALM:
1ASB:
IESBA:
IFRS:
ISA:
KMP:
MAR:
MD:
MoF:

Nu.
OCIL
P&L:
PPE:
PUC:
RAA:
R&D:
RGoB:
Ré&M:
RMA:
ROCE:
SPPI:
SOCIE
TDS:
TFMR:
TSM
NLCS:
URC:
FAD:

ACRONYMS & ABBREVIATION

Accounting and Auditing Standard Board of Bhutan
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
Bhutanese Accounting Standards
Bhutanese Financial Reporting Standards
Bhutan Telecom Limited

Chief Executive Officer

Credit Information Bureau

Citizenship Identity Card

Certified Practicing Accountants

Defined Benefit Obligation

Druk Holding Investment

Dungsam Cement Corporation Limited
Disaster Recovery Plan

Effective Interest Rate

Earnings Per Share

Finance & Accounts

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
Fair Value Through Profit & Loss

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Indian Assured Life Mortality

International Accounting Standard Board
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
International Financial Reporting Standards
International Standards on Auditing

Key Management Personnel

Management Appraisal Report

Managing Director

Ministry of Finance

National Land Commission

Ngultrum

Other Comprehensive Income

Profit & Loss

Property, Plant and Equipment

Projected Unit Method

Royal Audit Authority

Research & Development

Royal Government of Bhutan

Repairs & Maintenance

Royal Monetary Authority

Return on Capital Employed

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
Statement of Changes in Equity

Tax Deducted at Source

Total Fixed Monthly Remuneration

Tivoli Storage Manager

National Land Commission Secretariat
User Right Certificate

Finance and Administration Division

ii



TABLE OF CONTENTS

T ) Ty ST O PP P PR PPOPFPR PR PRPRPRRI i
Acronyms & Abbreviation ... YOOI POPIPPPPPN i
AL Of OIS . 1 v vttt se e eseae e eeneaseessasassasebaosonsenensnsentassssssnssssosseseanansessorsnsunesssnsyos iii
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ...vivitiniiiiieeiermiiereinscnrerrmmrsssaiiarmetsrsasesasesimrsinian 1-3
REPORT ON MINIMUM AUDIT EXAMINATION REQUIREMENTS ... 4-8
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Financial Positon ...vveveevreviviviiieiiiiosiiiereeeriecnenon et 9-10
Statement of Comprehensive INCOME w......oooviiieiviieecneniinenniinniiines s 11
Statement of Changes in EGUItY ......c.oirioiiiniinone s 12
Statementt Of CasSh FIOWS . ..v.iieiriirerntrrererenioreiiarisicnmeesnrnssisisnssnressisrescsecnotssse 13-14
Notes to financial StAEINEINES ....vvverererrrrririrrereiecretsiirtrrisisisitiernirrrrerereniasstasnm 15-26
ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS ..ovviviiiiiiiiieiiececnisienc e nnnennns 27-66
RATIO AN ALY S S ..t ittetereeeeareeseeassssiaasrsismsssaeasasesassorossassestneirtotssssensasnssassensanmon 67
COMPLIANCE CALANDAR & CHECKLIST .....c.tviieirerereimcniiitiistirinnassiesenareessisiomnn 68-72
MAN AGEMENT REPORT ...eviiitieiinieananeenriasreissssossssranesmesirisiatormsmenmarsisiesstarisiise 73-75
PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FOLLOW UP REPORT ....ouiviiiiuirernrneneiiiirornsanirairasessersusssrmmmn 76-79



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT }

Yarit b ROl Salunan

To,
The Members of
Bhutan Telecom Limited (BTL)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Bhutan Telecom Limited (the company), which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2021, the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for

the year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of this report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in Bhutan and we have fulfilled our other ethical requirements in accordance with these
requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a reasonable basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with BAS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's finanicial reporting
process.

Information other than financial statement & Auditor’s Report thereon

The company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Annual Report but does not included the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available

to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit report of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so , consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and if required issue a
revised Audit report on standalone financial statement.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we have exercised professional judgment and
maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit. Our responsibilities are to:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions misrepresentations, or
override of internal control;

ii, Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control;

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of Accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as going
concern, If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our audit report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a Going concern; and

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. e
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our audit report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to the public interest benefits of such communication.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 266 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016, we enclose the Minimum Audit
Examination and Reporting Requirements as Appendix I with statements on the matters specified
therein to the extent applicable.

Further, as required under Section 265 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company in so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report
have been prepared in accordance with BAS; and

d)  Based on the information, explanations and management representations received during
the course of our audit, the Company has complied with other Jegal and regulatory
requirements to the extent applicable to the Company.

For Karma & Associate
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registered No.: BH-08

X f\
, T

(Chimami Dorji)
Partner

Place: Thimphu

Date: /6/ %gp/’
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APPENDIX -I- TO AUDITOR’S REPORT '
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MINIMUM AUDIT EXAMINATION AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
As required by Section 266 of the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016

As required by section 266 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016, and on the basis of such checks
as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
report as follows:

General:

a)

b)

f)

g)

Company have adhered to the Corporate Governance Guidelines and Regulations as
applicable to them.

The governing board/authority pursue a prudent and sound financial management
practice in managing the affairs of the company

The financial statements are prepared applying the Bhutanese Accounting Standards
issued by the Accounting and Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan (AASBEB).

The proper books of accounts have been maintained and financial statements are in
agreement with the underlying accounting records.

The adequate records as specified under Section 228 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016
have been maintained.

Mandatory obligations social or otherwise, if any, entrusted are being fulfilled.

The amount of tax is computed correctly and reflected in the financial statements.

Regulatory norms in examining the accounts of the corporations subject to such statutory audit
contains the following:

1.a) The Company has maintained Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) Register showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situation of PPE.

b) Due to large size of regional offices and assets located at various locations, BT has decided to
conduct physical verification for each region annually by the management, apart from asset
custodians appointed at regional levels to conduct physical verification of fixed assets under
their respective profit centres, and there were material variances that were identified in
between the asset register and the physical assets on floor, the discrepancies have been
propetly dealt with in the books of accounts.

¢) Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS)-16 Property, Plant and Equipment states that the
residual value and the useful life of an asset shall be reviewed at least at each financial year-
end. The Company have adequate policy to review residual value and useful life of assets in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

2. The fixed assets of the Corhpany have }mLhum\revalued during the year under audit.
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventories has been conducting at reasonable
intervals by a committee nominated by the management for reconciling Inventories between
the System and actual physical inventories.

In our opinion, the procedures followed for physical verification of inventories are considered
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

According to information given to us, the Company is conducting physical verification of
Inventory in quarterly basis and no material discrepancies were noticed during review of
quarterly reports. Quantitative reconciliation has been carried out during the year in respect
of all major items of inventories at the end of the accounting period.

On the basis of our examination and information’s given to us, the Company has maintained
reasonable system of recording receipts, issues and consumption of materials and stores and
allocating materials consumed to the respective jobs, commensurate with its size and nature
of its business.

In our opinion and basis of information given to us, the quantitative reconciliation is carried
out at least at the end of accounting year in respect of all major items of inventories by the
Company.

The Company has adequately created provision for obsolete, damaged, slow moving and
surplus goods/ inventories which is based on policy of the Company. Provision made for the
year is Nu. 7.98 million.

As explained to us, the unserviceable or damaged inventories were disposed through open
auction at regular interval as per the inventory management manual 2019.

According to information given to us, the approval of appropriate authority is obtained for
writing off amounts due to material loss/discrepancies in physical/book balances of
inventories including Tele equipments, stores and spares.

On the basis of our examination of stock records, we are satisfied that the valuation is fair and
proper in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards issued by the Accounting and
Auditing Standard Board of Bhutan (AASBB). The basis of valuation of stock is same as that
in the previous year. In addition, the Company has adequate provision for impairment in
value of inventory lying for long time (refer to note 8 of this clause).

As informed to us, the Company has liquidated both the NPPF and BOBL secured loan during
year and no secured/unsecured loans were availed during year. Hence, said clause in not
applicable.

In our opinion and information given to us, the Company have refrained from granting loans
to other parties which are ultra-vires to the Article of Incorporation and other relevant Acts and
regulations.

The advances granted to officers/staffs are in keeping with the provision of service rules. No
excessive/frequent advances are granted and accumulation of large advances against
particular individual is avoided.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has established system of internal control in place to ensure completeness, accuracy, and
reliability of accounting records, for carrying-eut-the business in an orderly and efficient
manner, to safeguard the assets of the C%@}_&d}ﬁvgﬂ\as to ensure adherence to the rules &
regulations, systems and procedures. | & Vo \
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has reasonable
system of authorization at proper levels, and adequate system of internal control
commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business, on issue of stores and
allocation of materials and labour to jobs.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has
reasonable system of obtaining competitive bids/quotations from the vendors in respect of
purchase of stores, plant & machinery, equipment and other assets commensurate with the
size of the Company and nature of its business.

(a) As informed to us, there is no transaction for purchase and sale of goods and services made
in pursuance of contracts or agreements entered into with the directors or any other parties
related to directors or with the Company or firms in which the directors are directly or
indirectly interested.

(b)The examination of records does not reveal any transaction entered into by the Company
which is prejudicial to the interest of the Company wherein the directors are directly or
indirectly interested.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the expenses charged to the
Company accounts represent legitimate business expenses and no personal expenses have
been debited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, excepting those payable under
contractual obligations.

According to the records, no unserviceable or damaged inventories, Tele equipments or spares
parts were determined during year 2021 if any have been properly dealt in books of account.

As explained to us, the Company, in generally, has a reasonable system of ascertaining and
identifying point of occurrence of breakage/ damages of stores, spares and capital goods while
in transit, during loading/ unloading in storage and during handling etc. so that responsibility
could be fixed and compensation sought from those responsible.

Since Company is majorly into service sector, it is maintaining records related to service
inventory as well as consumable inventory on proper basis. Proper controls have been put in
place to ensure the safety of inventory of the Company.

The Company is maintaining reasonable records for sales and disposal of unusable and scrap
items.

According to the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing rates and taxes,
duties etc. and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year 2021.
Provision for Corporate Income Tax is adequate and necessary adjustments have been made
to compute the amount of tax required to be paid under The Rules on the Income Tax Act of
Bhutan, 2001, and has been appropriately disclosed in the financial statement.

According to the books records and the computation of tax, Company has payable of
Corporate Income Tax (CIT) Nu. 436.81 million for year 2021 and no other undisputed amount
payable in respect of rates and taxes, royalties, provident funds and other statutory deductions
at the yearend.

The Company is a service oriented organization and not a manufacturing concern and there is
no system of allocating man hours utilized to the respective jobs etc. g, Asg\
, k@?’ =N
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The said clause is not applicable in view of its nature of business. |



29.

30.

3L

32.

33.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

The credit sales policy and credit rating of customers is not applicable for the Company.

The Company has engaged some agents in connection with BT products and services through
appropriate screening. The agency commission structure is in keeping with the industry
norms / market conditions. Generally the Company has adequate system of evaluating
performanice of each agent on a periodic basis.

We are given to understand that, the Company has reasonable system of follow-up with
debtors and other parties for recovery of outstanding amounts. The management have also
done age-wise analysis of outstanding amount to realize the old debts and follow-up action.

According to records, the management of liquid resources particularly cash / bank and short-
term deposits etc. are reasonably adequate in respect of nature and size of the business. During
the year, Company could not deposit excess Cash in the interest-bearing deposits with any financial
institutions in the country, due to excess liquidity with banks and their denial to accept any term
deposits from corporate entities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
books and records on test check basis, the activities carried out by the Company are in our
opinion lawful and intra-vires the Articles of Incorporation of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a system of
approval of the Board for all capital investment decision and investments in new projects are
made only after ascertaining the technical and economic feasibility.

The Company has established an adequate and effective budgetary control system.

The Company does not have a costing system to ascertain cost of its services and the current practice is
based on estimation. The Company is going to upgrade its systems for having better revenue
allocation and cost management.

The details of remuneration to the Board of Directors including the Chief Executive Officer
have been indicated in the Notes to the Accounts.

In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the directives of
the Board issued have been complied with.

According to the information and explanations, we are given to understand that the officials
of the Company have not transmitted any price sensitive information, which is not made
publicly available, unauthorized to their relatives/friends/associates, or close persons, which
would directly or indirectly benefit themselves, We have however relied on the management
assertion on the same and cannot independently verify the same,

According to our examination of books and records, the Company have maintained proper
records for inter unit transaction/ service. The periodic reconciliations also done between its
units,

In our opinion, the Company has maintained reasonable records related to leases and other
items. As of date there is no machinery/ equipment’s are acquired on lease or leased out to
others.

To the extent revealed by our examination, the Company maintains a reasonable system of
costing to ascertain the cost of its services and #hal#e -ﬁ:@nake proper pricing decisions for

its services. >
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Computerized Accounting Environment

1. The Company has introduced and operating in SAP ERP environment since 2014. In our
opinion the system development controls and other internal control system were adequate
with respect to size and nature of computer installations.

2. In our opinion, the Company appears to have taken adequate measures and back up facilities
commensurate with the size and nature. As explained, the Company has a main system at
Thimphu and standby server installed at Phuentsholing and backup is going on daily basis
with complete backup with two way process. Firstly, data backup are going on system and
then it takes it to TSM server on daily basis.

3. The Company has a Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) in place, the Company keeps a back-up
data for the entire Company in a standby server installed at Phuentsholing and the same is
being maintained at Thimphu.

4. The operational controls in the Company are adequate to ensure correctness and validity of
input data and output information.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, measures to prevent unauthorized
access to the computer installation and files are adequate.

6. Since, no data migration to new system during year, the said clause is not applicable.

GENERAL
1. Going Concern Issues

On the basis of the attached Financial Statements as at 31 December, 2021 and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the financial position of the company is healthy and
we have no reason to believe that the Company is likely to become sick in the near future.

2. Ratio Analysis

Financial and operational ratio in respect of the Company is given in the statement of Ratio
Analysis.

3. Compliance of Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016:

The Company has complied with the provisions of The Companies Act of Bhutan 2016
concerning conducting of meetings, filing requirements, maintenance of records, issue of
shares, raising of loans and all other matters specified in the said Act.

4, Adherence of Laws, Rules & Regulations:

The audit of the Company is governed by the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016 and the scope
of audit is limited to examination and review of the financial statements, as produced to us by
the management. In the course of audit, we have reviewed compliance to the Companies Act
and its Articles of Incorporation and as explained to us, the Company has been complying
with appropriate laws, rules and regulations, systems, procedures and practices.

For Karma & Associate

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registered No.: BH-08
N A B AN
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Bhutan Telecom Limited
Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December, 2021

(Amount in Nu.)

-

Particulars Note As at 31st As at 31st
no. December,2021 December,2020
L ASSETS : '
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2(a) 3,083,111,657 3,410,461,431
Intangible assets 2(b) 704,978,376 840,939,889 |
Capital work-in-progress 2(c) 883,010,095 78,625,176
Investments | 3 4,276,493 15,847,192
Other receivable 4 - 1,000,000
Deferred tax assets (net) | 5 397,739,024 429,165,698
Other non-current assets 6 156,139 4,615,616 |
Total Non-current Assets 5,073,271,784 4,780,655,001
Current assets
Investments 7 16,849,534 602,849,126
Inventories 8 146,617,242 34,071,870
Trade receivables 9 89,774,006 116,014,798
Cash and bank balances 10 2,056,469,063 1,163,196,976
Loans 11 - 400,000,000
Other receivable 12 717,492 893,149
Other current assets 13 68,416,230 10,373,541
| 2378843567 | 2,327,399459
?VS;:; lf:slassﬁled as held for distribution to 14 5,964,125 99,285,178
Total Current Assets ! 2,384,807,692 2,426,684,638
i Total Assets . | 7,458,079 475 7,207,339,638
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
EQUITY
Equity share capital 15 4,000,000,000 4,000,000,000
Other equity 16 1,825,502,021 1,483,260,741
Total equity 5,825,502,021 5,483,260,741
Non-current Liabilities
Long term borrowings 17 - 84,279,486
Other payables | 18 31,439,832 62,523,389
Deferred government grants 19 450,417,819 563,775,802
Employee benefit obligation 20 38,670,675 123,373,504
Total non-current liabilities P 520,528,326 833,952,680
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Current Liabilities R I T

Trade and other payables 21 ( 260,964,372 67,226,235
Other payables 22 64,528,669 164,397,246
Short term provision 23 512,159,534 527,228,901
Other current liabilities 24 259,556,309 | 115,677,324
Employee benefit obligation 25 14,840,243 15,596,513
Total Current Liabilities 1,112,049,128 890,126,218
Total Liabilities 1,632,577454 1,724,078,897
Total Equity and Liabilities 7A458,079475 1 7,207,339,638

i
For Karma & Associate For and on behalf of board of directors

R ANALTE S

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. BHOS) _m— -
& Asg,, P )
S NG, 2] <
. .
( .himmi'-i)orii) :
Partner Urered N

Place: Thimphu W
Date: Q}’} )L~

Chief Executive Officer

C ha'irm.m
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Bhutan Telecom Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st December, 2021

Particulars Note No. | 31December,2021 | 31December,2020
Income:
3 o
fncomme from opsrations 2% 5336,295,311 4,708,529,145
Other income 27 46,521,275 77,225,556
5,382,816,586 4,785,754,700
Expenses:
Network operating expenses 28 620,186,544 551,380,137
Cost of trading goods 29 247 891,946 27,468,417
Emplovee benefit expenses 30 407,553,310 384,172154
Depreciation and amortization 31 887,994,358 944,928,543
Finance cost 32 13,996,848 34,130,668
Other expenses 33 288,963,575 571,938,143
2,466,586,582 2,514,018,063
Profit Before Tax 2,916,230,004 2,271,736,639
Tax expenses: M
Prior Period Tax 18,205,314
Current tax 886,452,853 750,776,588
Deferred income tax 31,426,672 (17,280,115)
Total tax expense 936,084,840 733,496,473
Profit after tax for the year 1,980,145,165 1,538,240,166
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement (gains)/losses on defined = =
benefit plans (5,423,505) (16,568,365)
Income tax r’:lat}ng to component for other 1,627,052 4,970,510
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (3,796,454) (11,597 856)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,983,941,618 1,549,838,021
Earnings Per Share 35 495 461
For Karma & Associate For and on behalf of board of directors
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg, No. BH0S)

Place: Thimphu

Date: 8’[9('2» o

Chief Executive Officer
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Bhutan Telecom Limited
Statement Of Changes In Equity For The Year Ended 31st December,2021

Particulars Share capital Rd‘f"ed Total Equity
earnings

Balance as at 31 December, 2019 854,082,000 3,786,007 427 4,640,089,427
Profit for the year 2020
* Note: Prior period expense of Nu. 6,336 adjusted - 1,538,246,502 1,538,246,502
with retained earmings \
Other Comprehensive Income - | 11,597,856 11,597 856 |
Dividend for the year - (771,758,326) (771,758,326)
Bonus share issue during the year 3,145,918,000 (3,145,918,000) -
Add back: Depreciation - 45,891,111 45,891,111
Add back: Brand & Management fee - 19,194,171 19,194,171
Balance at 31 December, 2020 4,000,000,000 1,483,260,741 5,483,260,741
Profit for the year 2021 - 1,980,145,165 1,980,145,165
Other Comprehensive Income 5,423,505 5,423,505
Dividend for the year - (1,550,000,000) (1,550,000,000)
Land transferred to DHI - (93,321,053) (93,321,053)
Balance at 31 December, 2021 4,000,000,000 l 1,825,502,021 5,825,502,021

For Karma & Associate
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No. BHOS) —

=~

\

~

| ../.
.

fb

((‘hmum Dorji) '~ : '

Partner

Place: Thimphu

Date: B ‘>l 217

For and on behalf of board of directors

/.

Chairman

LAt

——

Chief Executive Officer
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Bhutan Telecom Limited ‘
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st December, 2021

31st December !

: 31st December,
Particulars ’ 2021 2020
Cash flow from operating activities ‘
Net profit before tax 2,936,062,370 2,271,742,975
Adc}/ Less: Gain on sale of property plant and (4,054,266) (5,280)
equipment
aAsc:;:i é Less: Gain or loss on scrapping/ retirement of 3,070,595 10,903,592
Add/Less: Inventory loss (gain) on physical verification - -
Add/Less: Provision for loss allowance 9,180,518 9,529,411
Add/Less: BAS adj on interest expense on License fee 7,766,404
Add/Less: PPE adj related to last year - (33,482,192)
Add/Less: Adj for last year accounted in SOCIE - 65,085,283
Add/ Less: Provision for old inventories - -
Add/ Less: Foreign exchange loss/(gain) - -
Add: Less: Re-measurement gain/loss 5,423,505 16,568,365
Net I.)rf)ﬁt before tax and after adjustment of 2,957,449,126 2,340,342,155
provisions
Adjustment for:
Depreciation during the year 887,994,358 1,060,139,308
Interest paid 11,918,855 32,526,659
Interest received (17,435,796) {43,507,186)
Net'proflt from operating activities before working 3,839,926,543 3,389,500,936
capital changes
Adjustment for: -
Inventories (112,545,372) 3,721,229
Non-current/ current financial and other assets | 993,649,682 150,246,099
If]oz}-'a}rrent/ c1.1r.rent financial and other 86,099,094 (300,450,494)
liabilities/ provisions
Cash generated from operating activities 4,807,129,948 (146,483,167)
Income tax paid (950,975,972) (525,787,898)
Net cash flow from operating activities 3,856,153,972 2,717,229,867
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for property plant and equipment (360,319,580) (474,919,041)
Payment for intangible assets (179,565,754) (266,415,545)
Payment for capital work in progress (804,384,919) (41,391,471)
Sale of property plant and equipment (actual cash
received) 10,150,912 252,619
Interest earmned on fixed deposits 17,435,796
Net cash used in investing activities (1,316,683,544) (738,966,252)
¥ ‘;_‘ A.\%*‘ ‘ -
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Cash flow from financing activities

Term loan (long term borrowings) (84,279,486) (117,303,534)
Payment of dividend (1,550,000,000) (771,758,326)
Interest paid on Loans (11,918,855) (32,526,659)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,646,198,340) (1,436,799,285)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 893,272,087 541,464,332
Cash a.nd cash equivalents at the beginning of the 1,163,196,976 621.732,645
financial year
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents
Closing cash and cash equivalents 2,056,469,063 1,163,196,976
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 893,272,087 541,464,331
For Karma & Associate For and on behalf of board of directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. BHOS) / ~
) ‘:\.“ > Y : 2 C

(Chimmi Dorji)

/ \_ /(1 ; . : Chairman

Partner
Place: Thimphu W
Date: c;t D, ' 02 Chief Executive Officer

. L A &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note: 2(a)(b)(c) Property, Plant and Equipment

Bhutan Telecom Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at 31st December, 2021

Particul N Gross Block Accumulated Umﬂanmmmon Net Block
articulars - v -
01.01.2021 | Addition |Adjustment | 31122021 | 01.01.2021 | Addition |Adjustment | 31122021 | 31.12.2021 | 31.12.2020
Note A: Tangible |
Assets:
Buildings# 807,771,193 | 8,794,231 - | 816,565424 @ 267,211,639 | 31,509,878 .| 208721517 | 517,843,907 | 540,559,554
Mﬂwﬁﬂa 4 7.374,793,932 | 200,727,617 | 15,718,006 | 7,559,803,543 | 5,486,025,028 | 471,410,931 | 14,679,277 | 5,942,756,682 | 1,617,046,860 |1,888,768,904
Office equipments# 105,454,705 | 12,840,000 @ 1,743,794 | 117,151,011 = 80,502,375 | 9,696,651 | 1,247,351 | 88,951,675 | 28,199,335 | 24,952,329
WM_MMMV%E and 2,360,204,555 | 121,939,045 | 2,107,622 | 2,480,035,978 '1,451,585,844 159,518,053 | 1,304,037 | 1,609,799,860 | 870,236,117 | 908,618,711
MWthm and 24,374,686 850,904 27,588 25,198,002 | 15148917 | 1,696,592 25641 | 16,819,867 8,378,135 9,225,770
Vehicles# 114,685,186 | 15,167,683 | 9,581,203 | 120271665 76,349,021 | 11,992970 | 9,477,625 | 78864366 | 41,407,299 | 38,336,164
Total (A) 10,787,284,257 | 360,319,580 | 28,578,214 |11,119,025,623 | 7,376,822,824 | 685,825,074 | 26,733,931 | 8,035,913,967 | 3,083,111,655 | 3410,461,432
Particul Gross Block Accumulated Um—unmnmmmc_.. Net Block
culars —
01012021 | Addition |Adjustment | 31122021 | 01012021 | Addition |Adjustment | 31.12.2021 | 31122021 | 31.12.2020
Note B: Intangible
Assets: |
Mwmﬁmoa 4 2,113,819,430 | 179,565,754 - | 2,293,385,184 |1,343,892,586 | 280,020,745 | - 11,623913331 | 669,471,852 | 769,926,844
License# 532,597,835 - - | 532,597,835 461,584,790 | 35,506,522 497,091,312 | 35506,523 | 71,013,045
Total (A) 2,646,417,265 | 179,565,754 | - | 2,825,983,019 | 1,805477,376 | 315,527,267 | _ - 12121004643 | 704,978,376 | 840,939,889
Note C: Capitat 78,625,176 ﬂ%ﬁm@z - 883,010,095 - 1315 527,267 - .| 883,010,095 | 78,625,176
work in progress : | | - A
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Note: 3 Investments : Non-Current

Particulars Dec31,2021 | Dec 31,2020
\
Investment in fixed deposits 4,000,000 15,000,000
Accrued income on investments 276,493 847,192
Total N 4,276,493 | 15,847,192 |
Note: 4 Other Receivable : Non-Current -
Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dece 31, 2020
Security deposit with BOB - 1,000,000
Total - 1,000,000
Note: 5 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, plant and equipment 352,942,378 398,522,874
Staff training cost - -
Provision for leave encashment 7,191,165 6,131,151
Provision for doubtful debt 10,501,089 12,254,575
Provision for bonus 21,463,462 11,029,127
Deferred rent 175,398 178,214
Provision for Salary Indexation 1,800,000 -
Provision for separation allowance 2,493,032 2,339,045
Provision for carriage allowance 1,124,758 1,146,878
Provision for travel allowance 2,493,032 2,339,045
Amortisation of licence fees - -
Total 400,184,313 | 433,940,908 |
Deferred Tax Liability ‘
Deferred liability on account of licence fees 2,445,289 4,775,210
2,445,289 4,775,210
Total 397,739,024 429,165,698
Note: 6 Other Non-Current Assets
Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Prepaid expense - noncurrent - 4,468,400
Deferred Rent 156,139 147,216
Total 156,139 4,615,616

16



Note: 7 Investments: current

Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Investment in short term deposits with Fls 16,000,000 600,000,000
Accrued income on investments 849,534 2,849,126
Total 16,849,534 602,849,126
Note: 8 Inventories =
Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Inventory-Consumables 8,004,885 6,280,684
Inventory - Traded Goods 146,598,605 35,844,991
- Provision for Inventories (7,986,249) (8,045,813)
Total Inventories 146,617,242 34,071,870
Note: 9 Trade receivables - current
Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Unsecured, considered good 123,906,807 156,863,380
Less:- Loss allowance (34,132,801) {40,848,582)
Total 89,774,006 116,014,798
Note: 10 Cash and bank balances
Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Cash in hand 11,827,386 2,873,945
Balances lying with bank and current account 2,044,641,678 1,160,323,031
Total 2,056,469,063 1,163,196,976
Note: 11 Loans
Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Secured
Inter corporate loans given -DoCs - 400,000,000
Total - 400,000,000
Note: 12 Other receivables - current
Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Security deposit - others 717,492 893,149
Total 717,492 893,149

17




Note: 13 Other current assets

Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Advance to suppliers 48,991,842 142,000
Advance to others 801,264 805,613
Prepaid expense 15,563,275 4,750,823
Balance with government authority:
Tax Deducted at Source-Asset 3,059,850 4,675,105
Advance Income Tax || -

B Total e ‘ 68,416,230 | 10,373,541
' Note: 14 Asset classified as held for distribution to owners '

Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020

Asset classified as held for distribution to owners 5,964,125 99,285,178

Total

5,964,125 99,285,178

NOTE:-

In the meeting of the Board of Directors of the company held on 18th January 2018, the Board has
decided to transfer the ownership of lands to its holding Company i.e. Druk holding & investment
limited (DHI) in accordance with the DHI land policy 2016 and also the letter received from DHI
with reference number DHI/DOI/PIU/Lands/2017/654 dated 8th November 2017. The transfer
is to be done at book value and no consideration will be received from the holding company.

Non cash asset transfer has been accounted in the books of the company in compliance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard Interpretation - 17 " Distributions of non-cash assets to
owners", issued by Accounting and Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan. ASI 17 requires to
recognise a liability in the books to distribute non cash asset as a dividend to its shareholder at fair
value of the assets to be distributed with a corresponding liability for dividend payable.

Measurement of Land: - Due to the large volume of the land and the distinct location of many of
the lands, it was impracticable for the company to determine the fair value of the lands and hence,
the transaction has been accounted at carrying value of the lands. As on 31.122021, Bhutan
Telecom has transferred land worth Nu. 93,321,053 to DHI, these lands are located in various
Dzongkhags in the country
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' Note: 15 Equity share capital

(i) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

Particulars Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Authorized equity share capital |
5,000,000 equity shares of Nu. 1000 each 5,000,000,000 | 5,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up equity share capital 4,000,000,000 4,000,000,000
4,000,000 equity Shares of Nu. 1000 each
4,000,000,000 4,000,000,000 |

‘ The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Nu.1000/- per share. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Each holder of these ordinary shares are
entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the company. \

| (ii) Details of shareholding of the company S —
‘ Dec 31, 2021 Dec 31, 2020
Particulars No. of % of holding | No. of Shares % of holding
Shares
Druk Holdings & Investment Ltd. 4,000,000 4,000,000 100
Total 4,000,000 4,000,000 100
iii Reconciliation of number of shares
Dec 31,2021 Dec 31,2021 —=
Particulars No. of Amount No. of Shares Amount
Shares |
' Equity shares |
At the beginning of the year - 4,000,000 ' 4,000,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000,000

Issued during the vear

Qutstanding at the end of the
year .

4,000,000 = 4,000,000,000

4,000,000 4,000,000,000

' Note 16: Other equity

Particulars =— Dec 31,2021 Dec 31,2020 |

Retained Earnings 1,483,254,405 3,786,007 427
Particulars i 31 Dec,2021 31 Dec,2020
Opening balance 1,483,254,405 3,786,007,427
add: Add back of depreciation
and Provision for brand & 65,085,283

| management fee -

‘ Reduction retained earnings due (3,145,918,000)
to insurance of bonus shares R

. Land transferred to DHI (93,321,053)

_ Add: Profit for the year 1,980,145,165 1,538,240,166
Add: Other compressive income
for the year | 5,423,505 11,597,856

' Less: Dividend for the year | (1,550,000,000) (771,758,326) |
Closing balance 1,825,502,021 1,483,260,741 |

Retained earnings are the profit that the company has earned till the reporting date, less any transfer
to general reserve, dividends or other distribution made to shareholders.

l
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Note: 17 - Long term borrowings

Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31,2020
Long term loan - BOB & NPPF - 84,279,486
- 84,279,486

The Company has borrowed funds from Bank of Bhutan (BOB) amounting to Nu. 450,000,000 as on
1 October 2017. The term loan is subject to 1 year’s moratorium period and thereafter 7% p.a.
repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments of Nu. 26,890,000 each. The said loan is secured by
hypothecation of property (vehicles, PPE and tools) to BOB by way of first charge as security.
During the year, management has decided to liquidate entire principal outstanding along with

' applicable interest on the said loan on 1st October,2021

e e

!
Note: 18 Other Payables - Non-current

Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31,2020
License fees payable 61,782,630 90,639,198
»Eess:- Current maturity (refer note 22) (38,850,000) | (38,850,000)
30,699,034 61,782,630
| Deferred Rent 740,799 741,259
Total 31,439,832 62,523,889
Note: 19 Deferred government grants
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31,2021
Grant from RGoB* 47,137,317 69,691,138
Grant from RGoB 18,617,639 18,617,639
Grant from RGoB 28,519,678 51,073,498
Grant from JICA** 403,280,502 494,084,664
Grant from JICA 2,238,705 2,238,705
Grant from JICA 401,041,797 491,845,959 |
Deferred government grants# | 450,417,819 563,775,802 |

* Monitory grant received against investment in property, plant and equipment in rural areas. The

. Note: 20 Employee benefit obligation

same is treated as deferred income and is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on
a systematic or rational basis over the useful life of the assets.

* Non-monetary grant received in the form of property, plant and equipment, where the grant and
the corresponding PPE have been accounted on the fair value on the receipt, Subsequently, the

same is treated as deferred income and is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on
a systematic or rational basis over the useful life of the assets.
# Amortization of grant during the year is Nu. 113,357,982.56 (FY 2020: Nu. 115,210,765.70 )

Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31,2020 |
Provision for leave encashment 21,939,713 18,826,018
Provision for gratuity - 86,297,129
Provision for separation allowance 6,872,510 7,374,039
Provision for carriage allowance 2,985,942 3,502,279
Provision for travel allowance 6,872,510 7,374,039
Total PR Aoy 38,670,675 123,373,504
&4 %
l‘a* \ fH ,’I Xy
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Note: 21 Trade and other payables - current

Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
Sundry creditors o
Sundry creditors - domestic 83,513,562 16,648,430
Sundry Creditors - international 177,300,811 48,781,442
Other payables 150,000 1,796,313
|r B Total 7 260,964,372 67,226,235 |
' Note: 22 Other payables - current o
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
Current maturity for license payable 38,850,000 38,850,000
Current maturity of long term loan - 108,429,804
Security deposits - customer 3,290,000 3,270,000
Security deposits - vendor 22,388,669 13,793,531
Payable to employees - 53,911
Total 64,528,669 164,397,246
' Note: 23 Short term provision
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
Income tax payable (Net of advance tax paid as on 31
December 2021 Nu.439,703,975) 439,703,975 490,465,144
Provision for bonus 66,455,558 36,763,757
Provision for salary indexation 6,000,000 -
Total 512,159,534 527,228,901
Note: 24 Other current liabilities
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
b—Payable to government authority - 183,042
Tax deducted at source (TDS) - 9,673
Tax on Telecom Service Payable (ST) - 173,369
Contract liability™* - -
Advances from customer 132,090,000 -
Advances from customer - deposit work 7,736,732 2,628,791
Advance from postpaid customer 4,377,416 3,948,711
Liability for unearned income 112,702,161 107,266,779
Advances from Customer - DHI Intra Company
Other deductions 2,650,000 1,650,001
Bank Overdraft Facility
Total 259,556,309 115,677,324

*The services are being provided on the basis of usage by the subscribers. Un-provided services

will be availed by the subscribers in the followmg year.
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Note 24A - Contract liabilities

i Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
Contracts liabilities \

Advances from customer 132,090,000 -

' Advances from customer ~ deposit work 7,736,732 | 1,577,730
Advance from post-paid customer 4,377 416 3,948,711
Liability for unearned income 112,702,161 | 107,266,779 ’

Total Contracts liabilities 256,906,309 112,793,220 |

(i) Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities
There has been significant change in the contract liabilities, The total contractual Lability has
increased from Nu. 112,793,220 in 2020 to Nu. 256,906,309 in 2021, The increase in contractual
liability is mainly attributed from liability from unearned income amounting to Nu. 112,702,161
and an advance received from Bhutan Info-comm and Media Authority (BICMA) for
implementation of Rural Communication Project Phase VI, the total contract price of Nu.

176,120,000.

It was agreed that BICMA shall release the fund in three instalments, 50% in first instalment and
remaining 50% in two equal instalments. As on 31.12.2021 Bhutan Telecom has received 75% of
the RCP cost and the remaining 25% will be release by BICMA in 2022, the mobile connectivity
sites identified in the contract are expected to be completed in the following vear.

| Note: 25 Employee benefit obligation - current

Particulars Dec 31,2021 | Dec 31, 2020
Provision for carriage allowance 910,716 320,645
Provision for separation allowance 1,437,603 422,783
Provision for travel allowance 1,437,603 422,783
Provision for gratuity 9,023,485 12,819,151
Provision for leave encashment 2,030,836 1,611,151
Total 14,840,243 15,596,513
Note:26 Income from operations
Particulars | Dec31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
Revenue from contracts with customers
Service revenue B
-Landline 61,935,034 72,115,416
-Mobile 4,584,073,495 4,250,518,575
-Internet 366,837,498 337,420,498
-Others 36,332,825 30,666,475
Total 5,049,178,852 | 4,690,720,964
' Sale of products !
| -Telecom products 285,303,629 | 11,726,956
| -Accessories 10,100 90,926
285,313,729 11,817,882
Other operating revenue
Income from depository works L. 1802730 5,990,299
Total ra ¥ A.5336,295,311 4,708,529,145

The following table shows reconciliation of revenue g(cé}ﬁ:ised Wi\iyﬁi_éonh-act price.
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Dec 31,2020

‘ Particulars Dec 31,2021
Contract price
Adjustments for: 5,223,593,150 4,601,262,366
_Contract liabilities - Liability for unearned income 112,702,161 107,266,779
Revenue from operations 5,336,295,311 4,708,529,145
. Timing of revenue recognition )
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31,2020
Products and services transferred at a point in time 285,313,729 11,817,882 |
Products and services transferred over time 5,049,178,852 4,690,720,964
Total 5,334,492,581 4,702,538,846 |
Note:27 Other income
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31,2020
Income from Fine & Penalty 5,956,073 7,711,862
Interest income from investments* 17,435,796 43,507,186
Miscellaneous income 23,012,830 24,504,153 |
Total 46,521,275 77,225,556 |

Note: During 165th Board meeting held on 17th June, 2021, considering the extraordinary

' citcumstances and being mindful that this would be one off, the board resolved to waive off interest
on intercorporate loan amounting to Nu. 400 million given to DCCL, the interest waiver amounted
to Nu. 10.08 million for the period from March 1, 2021 to August,31.2021. Further as per the decision
of the board, BT has received entire Nu. 400 million from DCCL.

Note:28 Network operating expenses

Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31,2020
Internet band-with & leased line charges 292,320,362 264,038,176
Power and fuel 56,385,930 49,089,086
Repair and maintenance 251,550,443 221,964,960 |
Others 9,514,031 8,092,769
Rent 10,415,778 8,195,147
Total 620,186,544 551,380,137
Note:29 Cost of trading goods
= Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
t Cost of trading goods 247,891,946 27,468,417
i Total a 247,891,946 27,468,417 |
Note:30 Employee benefit expenses |
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
Salaries and bonus 353,975,939 323,791,520
Provident Fund Contribution 30,120,165 29,884,139
Expense on Gratuity 14,121,043 21,422,859
Medical Expenses 203,319 445,815
Staff welfare expenses 4,039,051 4,154,731
Others 2,430,108 2,121,526
| Expense on Separation Allowance 1,158,926 1,109,894




Expense on Carriage Allowance 549,152 577,590 |
Provision for Travel Allowance 1,158,926 1,109,894 ‘

r—

Total | 407553310 384,172,154 |

- |

Note:31 Depreciation and amortization

Particulars | Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020

Depreciation* 685,825,074 715,519,112
~ Amortization* ‘ 202,169,285 | 229,409,431
Total J 887,994,358 | 944,928,543

* Depreciation expense amounting to Nu. 113,357,983 has been netted off with amortisation
of government grant.

Note:32 Finance cost

Particulars " Dec31,2021 | Dec 31,2020
Interest on loans* 11,918,855 32,526,659
Bank charges 2,077,994 1,604,009 {
Total | 13,996,348 34,130,668 |

Note: The company has received Nu 5,300,234.71 as interest waiver on loans from Bank of Bhutan
and National Pension & Provident Fund as Covid relief fund. The same has been adjusted with
the principal loan outstanding,.

Note:33 Other expenses N |
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020

Fines and penalty 28,300 -
Rates and taxes 282,325 210,389
Provision for loss allowance 9,180,518 9,529,411
Deposit work expenses 685,286 4,795,802
Communication {fax, mail, post) 323,236 228,954
Business promotion 4,933,373 2,566,259
Advertisement 1,326,438 | 2,092,938
Commmission 185,770,762 208,291,603
Brand and management fees 32,392,047 26,442,496
Carriage outward and inward 1,197,365 1,497,117
Vehicle running expense - POL 9,501,793 7,183,177
Audit Fees 150,000 150,000
Audit expenses 173,143 469,921
Printing and stationery 1,093,894 956,762
Insurance 891,240 861,067
Loss on sale or retirement of asset (4,054,266) 10,898,312
Professional fees 1,664,575 1,859,406
Charity and donation 3,721,877 258,952,695
Travel-Foreign - 6,875
Travel 15,046,524 14,411,835
R&M building - service 6,324,844 6,960,546
Repair and maintenance others ) 10,582,594 11,660,776
Other expenses pa Al 7,747,705 1,918,676

Total Jiﬁf ‘ (-:%:\% 288,963,575 | 571,938,143
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Note: 34 Tax expenses

|
Dec 31, 2020 ‘

Particulars Dec 31,2021
Deferred tax income 31,426,672 (17,280,115) [
Deferred tax expense -
Corporate income tax paid 886,452,853 750,776,588
| Tax expense related to prior period 18,205,314 |
'“ Total 936,084,840 733,496,473
(Refer note 36 for tax expense reconciliation) |
. Note: 35 Earning per share
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
(a) Profit for the attributable to equity holders of the 1,980,145,165 1,538,246,502
company
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for calculating earnings per share. 4,000,000 3,338,154
{(€) Nominal value of Equity Share (in Nu.) 1,000 1,000
| (f) Basic and diluted Earnings per Share (Nu.) 495 461

Note 36: Income tax expense

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense showing amounts that are
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income and how the tax expense is affected by

non-assessable and non-deductible items.
Particulars | Dec31,2021 | Dec31,2020 |
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax 886,452,853 750,776,588
Current tax on profits for the year
Current income tax charge for the year
:Eustment for current tax of prior periods 18,205,314 -
[ » Total current tax expenses 904,658,167 750,776,588
Deferred tax -
Decrease (increase} in deferred tax assets 33,756,595 (17,280,115} |
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities (2,329,921) (2,998,029)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) ) 31,426,673 (14,282,087)
n 936,084,841 736,494,502
Particulars i Dec 31,2021 | Dec 31, 2020
S O
Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss / &7 c,; L
' Current tax on profits for the year | %! 886,452,853 | 750,776,588
( * '\ ,/S/ ) *\( 25
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Profit and loss ) —
Adjustment for current tax of earlier vears 18,205,314 -
| Total current tax expense (A} 904,658,167 750,776,588
Deferred tax expense recognised in profit or loss |
Deferred taxes. 31,426,673 (17,280,115}
Total deferred tax expense recognised in profit or loss (B) 31,426,673 (17,280,115}
Total deferred tax expense recognised in Other comprehensive 1,627,052 4,970,510
income (c) o
Total deferred tax for the year (B+C) 33,053,725 (12,309,605)
Total income tax expense recognized in profit & loss (A+B) 936,084,841 733496473
Total income tax recognized in Other comprehensive (c) 1,627,052 4,970,510
Total income tax expense (A+B+C) | 919,506,578 738,466,983
' (b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Particulars Dec 31,2021 Dec 31, 2020
Profit before tax 2,916,230,004 @ 2,271,736,639
Tax at the rate of 30% (December 31, 2021- 30%) . 874,869,001 681,520,992 |
Effect of non-deductible expenses, exempt income and others 61,215,839 51,975,481
Effect of prior year re-assessments | - -
ix:g;me tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and 1 936,084,841 733,496,473
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS




Bhutan Telecom Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at December 31, 2021

Significant Accounting Policies:

Bhutan Telecom Limited ("Company") was formed as a public corporation by virtue of
Telecommunication Act of Kingdom of Bhutan, 1999. The principal activities of Bhutan Telecom
Limited are providing the telecom services like landline service, mobile service, internet and
other allied services. Company is also engaged in providing data centre and contact centre
services. The holding company is Druk Holding and Investments Limited.

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue in accordance with the
resolution of the Company's Board of Directors on .......c.oveveeeeiinn

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out as
below: -

1. Basis of Preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements. The financial statements are presented in Nu and all values are rounded off to the
nearest Nu.

a). Compliance with BAS/BFRS:

The separate financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with
Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS) Phase I, Phase II and Phase III standards.

The ‘Accounting and Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan” {AASBB) has decided to adopt
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) in a phase manner with minor changes. As
per the roadmap issued by AASBB total of 18 standards are to be implemented in first phase
(Phase I) commencing in 2013 for a period of 3 years, while 9 standards will be implemented
in second phase (Phase II) and 10 standards in third phase (Phase III} from 2016 and 2018
respectively. The Company in compliance with the Companies Act of Bhutan has decided to
adopt all the applicable Standards from 2016.

b). Historical cost convention:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except assets held for
sale which are measured at fair value less cost of disposal.

2. Use of estimates:

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with BAS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and
contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements, income and expenses during the
period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
{a} Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note No. 41 to 45

(b) Estimation of useful life of Property plant and equipment/Intangible 'i\mTt\ Note "2 (a
& b)" / ,\6\ S
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{c) Income Taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for
income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax
positions. - Note No. 36

(d) Recognition of deferred tax asset - Note No.37
(e) Estimation of Impairment of Trade Receivable- Note No. 40

3. Current and non-current Classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when:
(a) It expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
(b) It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) It expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

{d) The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Current maturities of non-current asset are also termed as current assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
An entity shall classify a liability as current when:
(a) It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
(b) It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(d) It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

Current maturities of non-current liabilities are also termed as short-term liability.

Company always classifies deferred tax assets (liabilities) as non-current assets (liabilities). All
other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle of a company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. When the entity’s normal operating cycle is
not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.

4. Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to the
customer at the consideration, which the Company has received or expects to receive in
exchange of those products or services, net of any taxes / duties, discounts, and process
waivers. When determining the consideration to which the Company is entitled for providing
promised products or services via intermediaries, the Company assesses whether it is
primarily responsible for fulfilling the performance obligation and whether it controls the
promised service before transfer to customers. To the extent that the intermediary is
considered a principal, the consideration to which the Company is entitled is determined to
be that received from the intermediary.

Revenue is recognized when, or as, each distinct performance obligation is satisfied. The main
categories of revenue and the basis of recognition are as follows:

'({\“\ & 42\5 )’
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a).

Service revenue:

Service revenues mainly pertain to usage, subscription and customer on boarding charges for
voice, data, messaging and value-added services. It also includes revenue from
interconnection / roaming charges for usage of the Company’s network by other operators
for voice, data, messaging and signalling services.

Telecommunication services (comprising voice, data and SMS) are considered to represent a
single performance obligation as all are provided over the Company’s network and
transmitted as data representing a digital signal on the network. The transmission consumes
network bandwidth and therefore, irrespective of the nature of the communication, the
customer ultimately receives access to the network and the right to consume network
bandwidth.

The Company recognizes revenue from these services as they are provided. Revenue is
recognized based on actual units of telecommunication services provided during the reporting
period as a proportion of the total units of telecommunication services to be provided.
Subscription charges are recognized over the subscription pack validity period. Customer on
boarding revenue and associated cost is recognized upon successful on boarding of customer
i.e. upfront. Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets while invoicing /
collection in excess of revenue are classified as contract liabilities.

Service revenues also includes revenue from interconnection / roaming charges for usage of
the Company’s network by other operators for voice, data, messaging and signalling services.
These are recognized upon transfer of control of services being transferred over time. Certain
business services revenues include revenue from registration and installation, which are
amortized over the period of agreement since the date of activation of service. Revenues from
long distance operations comprise of voice services and bandwidth services (including
installation), which are recognised on provision of services and over the period of respective
arrangemernts

b}. Sale of Trading goods:

d).

d).

Revenue from the sale of goods mainly pertain to sale of telecommunication equipment and
related accessories for which revenue is recognized when the control of equipment is
transferred to the customer, i.e. transferred at a point in time when the risk and rewards of the
goods are transferred to the buyer. However, in case of equipment sale forming part of
multiple-element revenue arrangements which is not a distinct performance obligation,
revenue is recognized over the customer relationship period.

. Interest income:

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) for the long-term
investments, and any interest income earned from short term deposits with banks and bank
balances are recorded at prevailing market interest rates offered by respective financial
institutions.

Rental income:

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of comprehensive income due to its
operating nature.
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All other miscellaneous incomes are booked in the accounts only when collection is made.
5. Property, Plant and Equipment

a). PPE is initially recognized at cost. The company follows cost model for Property, plant and
equipment and are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and where applicable
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials,
direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located. Only those costs are recognized as an asset if,
and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Cost of software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized
as part of that equipment.

The Property, plant and equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or on disposal.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and are recognized net within "other income / other expenses" in Statement of
comprehensive income.

b). Subsequent costs:

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other costs incurred
for the running and maintenance of property, plant and equipment are expensed off in the
year in which they are incurred.

¢). Depreciation:

i. Depreciation is recorded by a charge to operating profit computed on a straight-line basis
so as to write off the cost of the assets to their residual values over the expected useful
lives. The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at each year end.

ii. Estimated useful life of Assets applied is as follows:

Asset type Useful life
1.Land NA
2. Building
a. Permanent structure 50 yrs
b. Semi-permanent structure 15 yrs
¢. Temporary structure 5 yrs
3. Tele-equipment
a. Tower 30 yrs
b. Rest 7 yrs
4. Power systems & cable
a. Air conditioner 5 yrs
b. Rest 10 yrs
5. Furniture 10 yrs
6. Office equipment i 5 yrs
7. Vehicle /;Q.‘_\ & ‘f\&po\ 5 yrs
8. Software application f &F % 5 yrs
9, License (based on agreement) ‘k" @ ! 15 yrs
K\ A /¥
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6. Capital work in progress:

Expenditure on material, labour, contract expenses and directly attributable cost such as
employee costs and overheads, project management expenses incurred during construction
period for executing the particular project are included in CWIP till these are capitalized.
Indirect expenditures and overheads incurred is expensed off and are not capitalized. Work,
which is still in progress relating to civil construction, is accounted for under capital work-in-
progress after settling the project system in SAP on monthly basis. Capitalization of work-in-
progress has been done on the basis of completion certificate issued by the concerned
authority.

. Intangible assets:
a) Software:

The intangible assets are initially measured at cost and carried as per cost model. Intangible
assets having finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the intangible asset.

Subsequent Expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands, are expensed off in the year in which they are incurred.

b). Ameortization:

These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives of 5 years. Costs associated with
maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Intangible assets include license fees which is amortized over the period of license.

. Borrowing cost:

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
production of a major capital project, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets is substantially ready for their intended use. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs. Further, exchange losses arising from foreign currency borrowings
should be regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost to the extent these losses do not exceed
the difference between the cost of borrowing in functional currency when compared to the
cost of borrowing in foreign currency.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of comprehensive income
in the period in which they are incurred.

. Leases:

At the inception of a lease, the lease arrangement is classified as eith,ef'lé Nx\:&iﬂ}ﬁmse or an
operating lease, based on the substance of the lease arrangement. /[
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Company as a lessee:

Assets on operating lease are not recognized as part of company's asset. Payments made for
operating leases are recognized in Statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern of the user's benefit.

Company as a lessor:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized over the lease term on the same bases as rental income.

Lease Income :

Lease income from operating lease is recognized in statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit.

10. Government grants:

Grants from Government and Government agencies including non-monetary grants are
recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. Grants related to income are recognized in the Statement of
comprehensive income on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognizes
expenses and the related costs for which the grants are intended. The unallocated portion of
such grant is presented as part of deferred income in the Statement of Financial Position.
Government grants related to depreciable assets is treated as deferred income and are
recognised in comprehensive income statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of
asset. Government Grants related to assets are presented in the statement of financial position
by setting up the grant as deferred income. Amount of depreciation on property, plant and
equipment acquired through grant has been transferred to statement of comprehensive
income by reducing depreciation expense. A government grant received or that becomes
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs shall be recognized in
Statement of comprehensive income in the year it is received or becomes receivable. A
government grant may take form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, such as land or other
resources, for the use of company. In these circumstances, the fair value of the non-monetary
asset is assessed, and both the grant and asset are accounted for at that fair value, Grants
relating to the period prior to 30t June 2000 are not identifiable and as such merged with the
deferred government grants.

11. Employee benefits:

Employee benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the company as detailed below:

a). Defined Contribution Plan (Pension and Provident Fund):

As required by National Pension & Provident Fund, both the employee and employer make
monthly contributions to the provident fund, which is a Defined Contribution Plan, equal
to a specified percentage of employee's basic salary. The company has no further
obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. The company does not have
any legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the Fund does not have
sufficient assets to pay all of the employee's entitlements. Obligation for contributions to
the plan is recognized as an employee benefit expense, ,n\grk{ez\v,m of comprehensive
income when the contribution to the Fund becomes due/ <
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b). Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity):

In accordance with the BTL service rule, the company provides for gratuity, a defined
benefit retirement plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retitement or termination of
employment, an amount based on the respective employee's last drawn salary and the
years of employment with the company. The company's net obligation in respect of the
gratuity plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that the employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The calculation is performed annually by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method and amount of obligation is
provided in the statement of comprehensive income. Measurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur and presented in other comprehensive income.

¢). Short Term Benefits:

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. All employee benefits payable wholly within
twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits and
they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The
Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense} after deducting
any amount already paid.

d). Earned Leave Encashment:

The employees of the company are entitled for earned leave, The employees can carry
forward a portion of the unutilized earned leave subject to the limit set as per BTL service
manual and utilize it in future periods or compensated in cash during retirement or
termination of employment for the unutilized accrued earned leave based on the salary at
the time. The company's net obligation in respect of the earned leave is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefits that the employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary and amount of
obligation is provided in statement of comprehensive income. The plan is unfunded.

e). Other Long-Term Benefits

As per company's service rules, the employee who have rendered minimum three years of
service are entitled to Traveling allowance of an amount equal to one month's last basic pay
of the employee, Transfer grant of an amount equal to one month's last basic pay of the
employee and Carriage charges at the time of leaving the service. One-month basic pay for
this purpose is the pay at the time of leaving the service. The company's net obligation in
respect of this terminal benefit is calculated by estimating the amount of benefits that the
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The calculation is performed annually
by a qualified actuary and amount of obligation is provided in Statement of comprehensive
income. The plan is unfunded.

12. Fair value measurement:

The Company measures some financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to Vmﬂdb 20 \&dg-ih_glity in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measuremm;-"da\\(-. The Co%}pny uses
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valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date:

- Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observed for the assets
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
reporting period during which the change has occurred. The management has an established
control framework with respect to fair value measurement. This includes a valuation team
that has an overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurement,
including level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the management.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarizes accounting policy
for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

- Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates, and assumptions

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost)."

13. Current & deferred income tax:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes (Tax Base).

Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects either accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the tax authority on the taxable entity, further they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiary, associate, and joint venture where
the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary di T
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. / 6“\ =2 Xs




14. Provision:

Provisions are recognized if, as a result of a past event, the entity has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are measured at the
management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as a finance cost. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the
expected benefits to be derived by the entity from a contract are lower than the unavoidable
cost of meeting its obligations under the contract

15. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Contingent liabilities is not recognized but disclosed for all possible obligations that arises
from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent assets is also not recognized but disclosed for all possible assets that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

16. Foreign Currency:

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recognized in the financial statements in
functional currency using exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the relevant
functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are generally recognised in statement of comprehensive income. Foreign
exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the Statement of comprehensive income on a net basis within other income or
other expenses.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at
fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date of transaction.

17. Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. Cost of inventories includes all cost of purchase, cost of
conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
conditions.

Traded goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Consumables and Stores & Spares: The Stock of stores & spare parts are charged to revenue
account except loose tools. Stores are valued at cost calculated on the basggT){ yearly weighted
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defective stores and spares identified during the physical stock taking."

18. Segmental reporting:

The company is in the Business of providing telecom services and its operating facilities are
all situated in the Royal Kingdom of Bhutan only. Under the broad segment of telecom
services, the company has subsidiary segments of fixed line service, mobile service, data center
and cloud service and internet service. Further as the company's share are not listed with any
stock exchange market, the provision of BFRS-8 - Operating segments is not applicable to the
company.

19. Impairment:

At the end of each reporting period, entity assesses whether there is any indication that an
asset (tangible or intangible) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Asset is impaired when its carrying value
exceeds its recoverable amount. Where an indication of impairment exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

20, Investments & other financial assets:
a) Initial measurement:

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

b) Classification and subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the company are classified in
the following categories:

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI);and
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification of financial assets depends on the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the P:\(E\\tgpai\ggm}mt outstanding.
A
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement of comprehensive
income and the losses arising from impairment are also recognized in the same. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables, bank deposits, security deposits, investment
in government securities, bonds, cash and cash equivalents and employee loans, etc.

ii. Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

A financial instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets; and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flow represent SPPIL
Financial instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting period at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI). Currently, the company does not have any asset classified
under this category.

jii. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss:
Fair value through profit and loss is the residual category. Any financial instrument which
does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income is classified at FVTPL. Financial instruments included within FVTPL
category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value. Fair value
movements are recorded in statement of profit and loss.

c. Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortised cost is
impaired. Impairment losses are incurred, if and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more loss events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset.

Loss events are events which have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The amount of loss is
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

d. De-recognition of financial assets:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar
financial assets) is primarily de-recognised only when:

i. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been transferred, or

ii.the company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset,
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

When the company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has substantially
transferred all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognized. When the company has not transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. When the
company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains sybstaritiallyall risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is d‘ft&ognised ii;(;hc entity has
| o .
| ¥|

| @
*\ A /&) 37
NG — 54

o



not retained control of the financial asset. When the entity retains control of the financial asset,
the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the asset.

e. Income recognition:

Interest income: Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective
interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
{for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses,

21. Financial liabilities:
a) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, borrowings, payables. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The company's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts.

b) Subsequent measurement:
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

i. Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in BFRS 9 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

ii. Borrowings:
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in Statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. Borrowings are classified as
current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement or of before the end of the reporting
period with the effect that the liability become 1\(\ able h\v(dczmand on the reporting date,
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the entity classify the liability as current, if the lender does not agreed not to demand
payment as a consequence of the breach before reporting date.

iii. Embedded derivatives:

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also
includes a non-derivative host contract - with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded
derivative cause some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the
contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit
index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is
not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through statement
of comprehensive income. If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset
within the scope of BAS 9, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather,
it applies the classification requirements contained in BAS 9 to the entire hybrid contract.
Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives
and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value though statement of comprehensive income. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in statement of comprehensive
income, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

iv.Trade and other payables:
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior
to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income. Borrowings are removed
from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with BAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where
appropriate. The fair value of financial guarantees is determined a5 the present value of the
difference in net cash flows between the contractual paymeqls uridler the :.h:bt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guaranleg, or the esbmbted amount that
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would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations. Where guarantees in relation
to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

22, Offsetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities or income and expenses are offset and the net amount
reported in the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income
when, and only when, the entity has a legal right and is allowed by the standard to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.

23. Cash & cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short -
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position.

24, Trade & other receivables:

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. *

25. Trade & other payables:

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

26. Assets held for sale:
Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held
for sale” when all of the following criteria's are met: (i) decision has been made to sell. (ii) the
assets are available for immediate sale in its present condition. (iii) the assets are being actively
marketed and (iv} sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the
Statement of financial position date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as ‘held for sale’ are
measured at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets
held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

27. Earnings per share:
a. Basic earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding any costs of servicing equity
other than ordinary shares

- by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

b. Diluted earnings per share:

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account: a——

).
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- the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Note 37: Deferred tax assets/ liabilities

Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Provisio | Deferred
. Provision - Provision | Provision . . Amortiza liability
Property, Provision Provision provision . n for
. for deferred for for tion of on
Particulars plantand | for Leave for . . for travel . Salary Total
. doubtful rent separation | carriage License . | account
equipment | Encashment bonus allowance Indexati .
debt allowance | charges fees on of license
fees

AtlstDecember | gyroon732 | 4757121 | 12563983 | 15175506 | 178897 | 2318762 | 1241854 | 2318762 | 4012174 - (7,773,240) | 411,885,581
Charged/ (credited):
- to profit or loss 21,431,141 1,374,030 (309408) | (4146,409) |  (684) 20,283 (94,976) 20283 | (4,012,174) - 2,998,029 | 17,280,115
~ to other
comprehensive - : . -
income
ptStstDecember | agg522873 | 6131151 | 12254575 | 11,029,127 | 178213 | 2339045 | 1146878 | 2,389,045 . - (4775,211) | 429,165,69
Charged/(credited): - - - - - - - - - - -
- to profit or loss (45,580495) | 1,060,014 | (1,753486) | 10,434,335 | (2,815) 153,987 | (22,120.00) | 153,987 - 1,800,000 | 2329921 | (31,426,672)
- to other
comprehensive - - -
income
wmmuu:q December | ,oh040378 | 7191165 | 10,501,089 | 21,463462 | 175398 | 2493032 | 1124758 | 2,493.032 ; 1,800,000 | (2,445,290) | 397,739,024
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‘, Note 38: Fair value measurements
Financial instruments by category
}

[ 31st December, 2021 | 31st December,2020 |

Particulars Amortised cost
Financial assets ]

‘ Investment in fixed deposits 4,000,000.00 15,000,000
Security deposit with BOB - 1,000,000
Accrued income on investments 276,493 3,696,318
Trade receivables 89,774,006 116,014,798
Cash and cash equivalent 2,056,469,063 1,163,196,976
Security deposits 717,492 893,149
Income accrued but not due 849,534 -
Other receivables - -
Inter-corporate loan given - 400,000,000

Total financial assets 2,152,086,588 1699,801,237

| Financial liabilities -

Long term loan - 84,279,486
Corporate bond - -
License fee payable 30,699,034 61,782,630
Deferred rent 740,799 741,259
Inter-corporate loan taken - -
Sundry creditors 260,814,372 65,429,922
Other payables 150,000 1,796,313
Current maturity for license payable 38,850,000 38,850,000
Current maturity of long term loan - 108,429,804
Payable to employees - 53,911
Security deposits 25,678,669 17,063,531
Total financial liabilities 356,932,874 | 378,426,855

i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the
financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at
amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has
classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.
An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1: hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and
rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Note: a) There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended 31
December 2021, and 31 December 2020.

(i) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include; -

L&A
(i) the fair value of the financial instruments is determined using dISCGL@U!‘d cas}id;[aw analysis.
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(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

31st December, 2021 31st December,2020 l
| Particulars Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value '
amount amount ‘
" Financial assets [ : 7 1
Investment in fixed 4,276,493 4,276,493 15,000,000 15,000,000
deposits
Security deposit with BOB - . - 1,000,000 1,000,00
' Total financial assets 4,276,493 | 4,276,493 16,000,000 | 16,000,000
Financial liabilities ‘
Long term loan 192,709,290 192,709,289 212,499,163
Corporate bond - | - - 304,217,164
License fee payable 69,549,034 69,571,347 100,632,630 | 129,556,713
Deferred Rent 740,799 740799 | 741,259 741,259
Total financial liabilities | 262,999,122 | 70,312,146 | 294,083,178 | 647,014,300

(a) Fair value of borrowings in table above is estimated by discounting expected future cash
flows.

(b) The management assessed that the fair values of remaining financial assets and liabilities at
amortised cost approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

(c) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments.
However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially
all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative
of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective
dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

Note 39: Capital management
(a) Risk Management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to;

i. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

ii. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company is formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of Druk Holding & Investments Limited
(DHI). The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The funding requirement
is met through a mixture of equity and long term borrowings.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total
equity so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to
maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The Company is not subject to any externally

imposed capital requirements. & As
The amount mentioned under total equity in balanco&h@*t is con\ldcfed as Capital.
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(b) Dividends Paid and Proposed Remarks The value will be update after AGM on 25t Feb

I Particulars 2021 | 2020
(i) Equity shares }
Final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2021~
Nu.????? 1,550,000,000 ' 771,758,326

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting
period

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the board
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
Nu.??????2?2??2. This proposed dividend is subject to the
approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general
meeting.

1,800,000,000

Note 40: Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (i.e. foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages
the risk and the impact of it in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure Arising - Measurement Management
Cas%l and cash Diversification of
equivalents, trade Acein bank deposits
Credit risk receivables, financial gemg pOsttS,
analysis customer base and
assets measured at e
. credit limits
amortised cost. ‘
Availability of
e Trade payables and Rolling cash | committed credit
| Liquidity risk other financial liabilities | flow forecasts | lines and borrowing
i facilities \
Recognised financial Cash flow , '
Market risk - foreign | assets and liabilities not | forecasting Diversification of
exchange denominated in Sensitivity liability
ngultrum (Nu.) analysis
Portfolio of loan
Market risk - interest Long-term borrowings | Sensitivity contains fixed
rate at variable rates analysis interest loans from

financial institutions

(A) Credit risk

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in
note 38.



(I} Trade and Other Receivables

Apart from cash and cash equivalents, company's majority of the financial assets are in the form
of trade receivables only. Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the
Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. As significant portion of the company's sale is in cash (all prepaid services), total
trade receivables outstanding at the reporting date are also not significant in comparison of the
company's total revenue. These trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on
credit term of 60-90 days. The Company regularly monitors its outstanding customer receivables.
The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various
levels within organisation to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation.

The credit risk related to the trade receivables is managed by the Company through established
policy and procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, by setting
appropriate payment terms and credit period, and by setting and monitoring internal limits on
exposure to individual customers. The credit period provided by the Company to its customers
generally ranges 30-60 days.

Company categorised its trade receivables mainly into two categories, due from international
customers and from domestic customers. In case of international debtors, there is no history of
default and delay risk. Further, as per the arrangement and company's policy in case of majority
of the international customers, receivables balances are settled on regular interval. Therefore,
considering the forward looking approach management believes that the credit risk in case of
international customers is not significant and however loss allowance is created in during the
year.

In case of domestic trade receivables, company have history of delay in recovery as well as default
in recovery. However, as per the company policy, in case of delay in recovery, company billed
and recover delay charges for the delay period. Accordingly, company is not exposed to delay
risk. For default risk, company based on history, past trends and forwarding looking approach
provides for loss allowance following expected credit loss method.

The Company uses expected loss model to measure loss allowance on trade receivables which is
based on provision matrix.

The ageing of trade receivables (net of provisions) as of balance sheet date is given below. The
age analysis have been considered from the due date:

Particulars Less than 180 More than 180 | Total
days days
Trade receivables as at 31.12.2021 (gross) 91,681,405 32,200,516 123,906,807 l
' Less: Loss allowance | (5.763437) | (28,427,402) (34,190,839) |
Trade receivables as at 31 12, 2021 (gross) 85,917,968 3,773,114 | 89,774,006
, Particulars Less c:han 180 More than 180 Total
; ays days |
Trade receivables as at 31.12.2020 (gross) 116,705,031 40,158,349 156,863,380
Less: Loss allowance | (8,009857) | (32,838,726) (40,848,583)
Trade receivables as at 31.12.2020 (gross) 108,695,174 7,319,623 116,014,798 |

The Company performs on-going credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and
monitors the credit-worthiness of its customper§ Tgwmch it grants credit in its ordinary course of
business. The gross carrying amount of a’(\m‘anaat aiset is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic gpect of recb%eT This is generally the case when the
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Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount due. Where the financial asset has been
written-off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit and loss.

Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s
finance division in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are
made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.
Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Companies’ Board of Directors on an annual basis.
The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. None of the company's cash
equivalents with banks, deposits and other receivables were past due or impaired as at 31st
December 2021.

(i) Credit Risk Management

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company'’s
finance department. Currently the Company has investment in fixed deposits which are made
only with approved counterparties in accordance with the Company’s policy.

Apart from cash and cash equivalents, company's majority of the financial assets are in the form
of trade receivables only. Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the
Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. As significant portion of the company's sale is in cash (all prepaid services), total
trade receivables outstanding at the reporting date are also not significant in comparison of the
company's total revenue. These trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on
credit term of 30-60 days. The Company regularly monitors its outstanding customer receivables.

Company categorised its trade receivables mainly into two categories, due from international
customers and from domestic customers. In case of international debtors, there is no history of
default and delay risk. Further, as per the arrangement and company's policy in case of majority
of the international customers, receivables balances are settled on regular interval. Therefore,
considering the forward looking approach management believes that the credit risk in case of
international customers is not significant and no loss allowance is required to be provided.

In case of domestic trade receivables, company has history of delay in recovery as well as default
in recovery. However, as per the company policy, in case of delay in recovery, company billed
and recover delay charges for the delay period. Accordingly, company is not exposed to delay
risk. For default risk, company based on history, past trends and forwarding looking approach
provides for loss allowance following expected credit loss method.

(B) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally performed in accordance with
practice and limits set by the Company.

L p——

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities ?), Asso
%N,
The tables below analyse the Company's financial hablhtfbs into releeg@ht maturity groupings
based on their contractual maturities. l :;Z ;
i \ Z/ Y, 46



The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual Maturities of Financial Liabilities:

' Particulars Less than 1 year | More than 1 year Total

31 December,2021
Long term loan - - -
Corporate bond - - .
License fee payable 38,850,000 30,699,034 69,549,034
Deferred Rent - 740,799 740,799
Inter-corporate loan - -
Sundry creditors 260,814,372 - 260,814,372
Other payables 150,000 - 150,000
Payable to employees - - -
Provision for Bonus - - -
Security deposits 25,678,669 - 25,678,669

Total non-derivative liabilities 325,493,041 31,439,832 356,932,874

31 December,2020
Long term loan - - -
Corporate bond 121,801,912 89,524,577 211,326,488
Inter-corporate loan - -
License fee payable 38,850,000 61,782,630 100,632,630
Deferred Rent 741,259 741,259
Sundry creditors 65,429,922 - 65,429,922
Other payables 1,796,313 - 1,796,313
Payable to employees 53,911 - 53,911
Provision for Bonus - - -
Security deposits 17,063,531 — - 17,063,531

Total Non-Derivative Liabilities 1 244,995,589 152,048,465 397,044,054

(C) Market Risk
(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign Currency risk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The company does not operate internationally, however, expose to the foreign currency risk due
to receivables/payables denominated in foreign currency for the various transactions such as
interconnect agreement with foreign operators, and providing network services to the foreign
operator's customers, etc. Foreign currency risk, is closely monitored by the Management to
decide on the requirement of hedging. The position of foreign currency exposure to the Company

as at the end of the year is expressed in USD are as follows:

Particul | December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
ey USD usp
Financial assets 163,850 212,986
Financial liabilities 38,285 499,353
Net exposure to foreign curre;x‘s \ns i 125,565 (286,367)
4 @ ﬁO(} B :
Partlcul.u} < = | December 31,2020 | December 31, 2019
| %/
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_ Euro Euro -
Financial assets i 798 2,680
Financial liabilities - - '
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 798 2,680 1

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign
currency denominated financial instriments.

. Impact on profit before tax ,
Particulars Change in currency Decenﬁ)er . |
exchange rate 31,201 December 31, 2020 ‘
USD sensitivity
Appreciation in Nw.* 5% - 6,278 (14,318)
Deprecation in Nu.* -5% (6,278) 14,318
EURO sensitivity S
Appreciation in Nu.* 5% 39.90 134
Deprecation in Nu.* -5% (39.90) (134)

* Holding all other variables constant

As value of Nu. is constantly equal to the INR, company is not exposed to any foreign currency
risk relating to amount receivables/payables in INR.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations
with floating interest rates. As company does not have any variable rate borrowing outstanding
or investment, company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.

(iii) Price Risk
The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),

whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company does not have any financial asset investments which are exposed to price risk.

Note :41 Disclosure as per BAS 19, ‘Employees Benefit’ as regards defined benefit scheme
(Gratuity)

A Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20

1 DBO at end of prior period 222,947,201 217,445,154 |

2 Current service cost 13,766,943 13,505,402

3 Interest cost on the DBO 17,481,676 16,923,024

4  Curtailment (credit)/ cost - -

5 Settlement (credit)/ cost - -

6  Past service cost - plan amendments - -

7  Acquisitions (credit)/ cost -

8 Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience (10,205 880) | (13,111,683)

g Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic y Q& »S_Soo .

assumptions { 5/ ”g - .

10 Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumpttorﬁ .0 '138,273 I -
W L/ -i?*"
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11 Benefits paid directly by the Company

(8,852,500)

(11,814,696)

12 Benefits paid from plan assets
|13 DBO at end of current period 235,275,714 | 222,947,201 |
B Statement of Profit & Loss 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1  Current service cost 13,766,943 13,505,402
2 Pastservice cost - plan amendments - -
3 Curtailment cost / {credit) - -
4  Settlement cost / (credit) - -
5  Service cost 13,766,943 13,505,402
6  Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 17,481,676 16,923,024
- Immediate recognition of {gains)/losses - other long . :
term emplovee benefit plans
8 Costrecognized in P&L 31,248,619 30,428,426
C  Defined Benefit Cost 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1  Service cost 13,766,943 13,505,402
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset} 17,481,676 16,923,024
3  Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (5,097,559) (15,367,451) |
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long i
term employee benefit plans
5 Defined Benefit Cost 26,151,060 15,060,975 |
D  Development of Net Financial Position 31.Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)** 235,275,714 222,947,201
2 Fair Value of Plan Assets {FVA) 226,252,228 123,830,921
- 3 Funded Status (Surplus/(Deficit)) (9,023,485) (99,116,280)
4 Net Defined Benefit Liability (9,023,485) {99,116,280)
I E Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1 Net. defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior 222,647,201 217,445,154
period
2 Service cost 13,766,943 13,505,402
3  Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 17,481,676 16,923,024
4  Actuarial (gain) or losses due to experience adjustment (10,205,380) (13,111,683)
5  Amount recognized in Profit & Loss - -
6  Employer contributions - -
7  Benefit paid directly by the Company (8,852,500) (11,814,696)
8  Actuarial (gain) or losses due to financial assumptions 138,273 -
9  Withdrawals From the Plan Assets - -
10 Cost of termination benefits - -
Net defined benefit liability at end of current period 235,275,712 222,947,201
' F_ Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI) 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1  Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability experience (10,205,880) (13,111,683) |
2 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability assumption 138,273 .
changes
3 Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period {10,067,607) (13,111,683)
4  Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate 4,970,048 (2,255,768)
5  Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (5,097,559) (15,367 ,451)
6  Adjustment for limit on net asset - -
Expense recognized as OCI (5,7097}&) ;‘ (15,367,451)
TS~
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss Recognized via OCI at Current Period E;‘é;"‘ C';’; \
G Reconciliation of changes in Fair Value of Plan Asset |  31-Dge-21 31-Dec-20 |
A ~\ / =y
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1  Fair value at the beginning of the year \ 123,830,921 174,689,696
2 Contribution paid into the plan 99,116,280 (50,305,414}
3  Return on plan assets 17,127,576 9,005,567
4  Benefits paid from the plan (8,852,500) (11,814,696)
5 Faet?rn on plan assets greater or (less) than discount (4,970,048) 2255768 |
| Fair value at the end of period 226,252,228 123,830,921 |
" H Expected benefit payments for the year ending 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
Less than a year 34,677,298 27,185,103
Between 1 - 2 years 31,719,896 29,618,901
Between 2 - 5 years 102,895,711 105,689,836
, Over 5 years = 635,398 484 621,905,679 |
(i) Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 December, 2021 Not Applicable
(ii) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 11.75 years
(iii} Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
| ~a__ Discount Rate 5 = 31-Dec-~21 ~ 31-Dec-20
Discount Rate as at 31 December 2021 0.50% 8.00%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Discount Rate | (8,029,282) (7,859,728)
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Discount Rate ‘ 8,573,426 8,395,153
b  Salary Escalation rate 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
Salary Escalation rate as at 31 December 2021 I 0.50% 8.00%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Salary escalation rate 9,162,976 8,939,738
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Salary escalation rate (8,658,477) (8,443,125)

(iv) Risk exposures

Valuing a defined benefit plan is fundamentally an exercise in estimating the future cost of the
benefit, the exact value for which only time will reveal. It relies on a set of financial and
demographic assumptions along with prevalent regulatory framework in valuing liability. Thus,
the Plan is exposed to a variety of risk as discussed herein.

1. Discount rate risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is heavily dependent on the discount rate. As
such, the quantity is highly sensitive to the discount rate and a slight decrease in this assumption
parameter will result in an ultimate cost that is significantly higher and vice versa.

2, Salary growth risk

As the gratuity benefit is a final-pay scheme, the actual cost of the plan will depend on the growth
rate of salary over the years. As such, a higher than expected growth in salary will result in a cost
which is higher than the estimate. Similarly, a slower salary growth will result in actual liability
being lower than projected.

3. Employee turnover risk

Employee turnover experience of BTL will have a significant impact on the design of the benefit
and consequently the overall cost of the plan. Furthermore, deviation in actual experience from
assumption would also lead to change in the liability of the plan.

4. Demographic risk / tl &4 ‘J‘
'kcns % ‘
l ‘ o |
/ %kl
‘\g \ A/ g*/
&
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In the absence of credible scheme-specific data, the IALM 2012-14 mortality rate has been used
in projecting the benefits. Thus, deviation of the actual experience from the rates used will result
in change in the cost of the plan.

5. Regulatory risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation has been arrived at using the current set of
regulatory frameworks. As such, any change in the relevant rules and regulations concerning
gratuity benefit such as increase in gratuity ceiling, introduction of gratuity floor, change in

vesting period or benefit accrual rate would eventually alter the liability.

6. Liquidity risk

Finally, there is a risk that BTL may not be able to honour the gratuity payments in the short-run
due to liquidity constraints.

7. Investment risk

As the gratuity scheme, there is a risk that the fund's investment is not able to earn the assumed
rate of return. In such situation, the ultimate cost of the plan will be affected

8. Asset-liability mismatch risk

This risk arises from the unavailability of investments suitable and commensurate with the
nature of liability, especially in the absence of well-developed capital market.

Note: 42 Disclosure as per BAS 19, ‘Employees Benefit” as regards defined benefit scheme

(Leave Encashment)

V) Other Long-Term benefits (Un-Funded)

A Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
1 DBO atend of prior period 20,437,169 15,857,069
2  Current service cost 3,533,380 4,580,100
3 Interest cost on the DBO 288,221 (61,621)
4 Curtailment (credit)/ cost -
5 Settlement (credit)/ cost -
6 Past service cost - plan amendments -
7  Acquisitions (credit)/ cost -
8 Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience 16,544,440 16,688,949
9  Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions -
10 Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions 1,740 -
11 Benefits paid directly by the Company (16,834,401) | (16,627,328)
12 Benefits paid from plan assets - |
13 DBO at end of current period 23,970,549 20,437,169
B _Statz'ment of Profit & Loss =2 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
1 Current service cost 3,533,380 4,580,100
2 Past service cost .
3 Loss or (Gain) on setlement - ‘
4 TInterest on DBO 288221 | (61,621)
6 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) - \
; Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses —_-oglsr long term 16,546,180 16,688,949
| " __employee benefit plans E a8 |
| 8  Cost recognized in P&L w4 .S\."\ o | 20,367,781 21,207,428 |
"\* \ , ‘; |
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['C  Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) 31-Dec21 | 31-Dec-20 |
1 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to experience adjustments 16,544,440 | 16,688,949 |
2 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in demographic 1740 )

assumptions « ’ ‘
3 Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 16,546,180 16,688,949
' 4 Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate ‘
5 Actuarial {gains)/ losses recognized in OCI 16,546,180 | 16,688,949
6 Adjustment for limit on net asset - - ‘
Act.uariaI {Gain) or Loss Recognized via OCI at Current 16,546,180 16,688,949
Period End = _—
: D Development of Net Financial Position 31-Dec-21 ] 31-Dec-20 l
Defined Benefit Obligation {DBO)** 23,970,549 | 20,437,169 |
Fair Value of Plan Assets (FVA) - -
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) 23,970,549 | 20,437,169
Net Defined Benefit Liability - 23,970,549 | 20,437,169
E Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20 |
1  Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior period 20,437,169 | 15,857,069
2 Service cost 3,533,380 4,580,100
3 Net interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 288,221 (61,621)
4  Actuarial gain/loss due to experience 16,544,440 | 16,688,949 |
5 Amount recognized in Profit & Loss - |
6 Employer contributions -
7  Benefit paid directly by the Company (16,834,401) | (16,627,328)
8 Acquisitions credit/ {cost) -
9 Actuarial (gain) or Losses due to change in financial 1.740 )
assumptions ’
10 Withdrawals From the Plan Assets -
11 Cost of termination benefits -
10 Net defined benefit liability at end of current period 23,970,549 20,437,169
Expected benefit payments for the year ending 31-Dec-21
2 31-Dec-22 2,193,302
3 31-Dec-23 2,113,801
4 31-Dec-24 2,321,270
5  31-Dec-25 2,309,222
6  31-Dec-26 1,861,718
7 December 31, 2027 to December 31, 2031 9,246,099
8 December 31, 2032 to December 31, 2041 22,984,219
i} Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31, December 2021.
if) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation: 9.74 years.
E | Sensitivity Analysis
Assumption/Parameter Scenario Netgg(e)ct of
. 0.5% (989,951)
Discount Rate ’ s‘bcf'.-,.Base Rate Base Rate
% | -0.5% 1,067,110 |
/ %)
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0.5%
Salary Growth Rate Base Rate
-0.5% 1,124,967
0.5% (15,660)
Employee Turnover rate Base Rate Base Rate
-0.5% 19,266 |
| Particulars 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
Present value obligation at the end of the year
towards compensated absences** 23,970,549 20,437,169
**Excluding earned leave on contract labour

i) Risk Exposures

Valuing a defined benefit plan is fundamentally an exercise in estimating the future cost of the
benefit, the exact value for which only time will reveal. It relies on a set of financial and
demographic assumptions along with prevalent regulatory framework in valuing liability. Thus,
the Plan is exposed to a variety of risk as discussed herein.

1. Discount Rate Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is heavily dependent on the discount rate. As
such, the quantity is highly sensitive to the discount rate and a slight decrease in this assumption
parameter will result in an ultimate cost that is significantly higher and vice versa.

2. Salary Growth Risk

As the Earned Leave benefit is a final-pay scheme, the actual cost of the plan will depend on the
growth rate of salary over the years. As such, a higher than expected growth in salary will result
in a cost which is higher than the estimate. Similarly, a slower salary growth will result in actual
liability being lower than projected.

3. Employee Turnover Risk

Employee turnover experience of BTL will have a significant impact on the design of the benefit
and consequently the overall cost of the plan. Furthermore, deviation in actual experience from
-assumption would also lead to change in the liability of the plan.

4. Demographic Risk

In the absence of credible scheme-specific data, the IJALM 2012-14 mortality rate has been used
in projecting the benefits. Thus, deviation of the actual experience from the rates used will result
in change in the cost of the plan.

5. Regulatory Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation has been arrived at using the current set of
regulatory frameworks. As such, any change in the relevant rules and regulations concerning
Travel allowance benefit such as increase in Earned Leave Benefit such as increase in ceiling,
introduction of floor and change in vesting period or benefit accrual rate would eventually alter
the liability.

6. Liquidity Risk
Finally, there is a risk that BTL may not be able to honour the Earned leave payments in the short-
run due to liquidity constraints. p—a,

b a A \
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Note: 43 Disclosure as per BAS 19, ‘Employees Benefit’ as regards defined benefit scheme
(Carriage Allowance)

A Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) | 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20 |
1 DBO at end of prior period 3,822,924 4,139,513
2 Current service cost 269,721 277,562
3  Interest cost on the DBO 279,431 300,028
4  Curtailment (credit)/ cost - .
5  Settlement (credit)/ cost - -
6  Past service cost - plan amendments - -
7  Acquisitions (credit)/ cost - -
8  Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience (144,643) (505,018)
9  Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions .
10 Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions (744) -
11  Benefits paid directly by the Company (330,031) (389,161)
12 Benefits paid from plan assets | = - ,
13 DBO at end of current period | 3896658 | 3822924
B Statement of Profit & Loss 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20 |
1 Current service cost 269,721 277,562
2  Past service cost - plan amendments - -
3 Curtailment cost / (credit) - -
4  Settlement cost / (credit) ‘ - 2
5 Service cost ‘ 269,721 277,562 |
6 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 279,431 300,028
. Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term : )
employee benefit plans
. 8 Cost recognized in P&L 549,152 577590 |
|
C g ~ Defined Benefit Cost o 31-Dec-21 31-Dec_-20-7‘1
1 Service cost 269,721 277,562
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 279,431 300,028
3 Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (145,387) {505,018)
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term i i
~* employee benefit plans | __ 1]
5 Defined Benefit Cost 403,765 | 72,572
D Development of Net Financial Position 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)** (3,896,658) | (3,822,924)
2 Fair Value of Plan Assets (FVA) - -
3  Funded Status (Surplus/(Deficit)) (3,896,658) | (3,822,924) |
4 Net Defined Benefit Liability (3,896,658) | (3,822,924) |
E Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
1  Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior period | (3,822,924.00) | (4,139,513)
2 Service cost (269,721) | (277,562)
3 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset} (279,431} (300,028)
4  Amount recognized in OCI 144,643 505,018
5 Amount recognized in Profit & Loss - -
6 Employer contributions - -
7  Benefit paid directly by the Company 330,031 389,161
8 Acquisitions credit/ (cost) - -
9 Actuarial (gain) or losses due to change in financial 744 i
assumptions T-f_\s P
10 Withdrawals From the Plan Assets //‘ > &80, -4 - g
11 Cost of termination benefits { & A\ : .
Net defined benefit liability at end of cufrent period | x(3,896,658) | (3,822,924)

#* / 5§}
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F Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20 |
1 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability experience (144,643) (505,018)
2 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability assumption changes (744) - |
3  Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period (145,387) {505,018)
4 Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate - -
5 Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (145,387) (505,018) |
6 Adjustment for limit on net asset | - |
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss Recognized via OCI at Current @
" Period End (145,38? . (505,018) .4
G ~ Expected benefit payments for the )'ea;;ding 31-Dec-21 *I
| 2 31-Dec-23 797,057
3 31-Dec-24 866,730
4 31-Dec-25 806,727
5 31-Dec-26 631,646
6 December 2027 to December,2031 3,186,846.00
| 7 December 2032 to December,2041 ~ 6,346,388.00
i. Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 December 2021
ii. Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 8.60 years
iii, Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
[a Discount Rate == | 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
Discount Rate as at 31 December 2021
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% (2018: 1%, 2017: 1%) increase in
Discount Rate (108,050) (108.777)
Q, .19, .19, 3
Eflfect on DBO due to 0.5% (2018: 1%, 2017: 1%) decrease in 114,670 115,429
Discount Rate
l e =)
| b Carriage Cost Inflation Rate . 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
Carriage cost inflation rate as at 31 December 2021
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Transportation Cost 128,629 128,948
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Salary escalation rate (122,190) (122,479)
e Mortality Rate 31-Dec-21  31-Dec-20 |
] Carriage cost inflation rate as at 31 December 2021
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Transportation Cost 128,629 128,948 ‘
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Salary escalation rate (122,190) | (122,479) J'
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iv. Risk Expostres

Valuing a defined benefit plan is fundamentally an exercise in estimating the future cost of the
benefit, the exact value for which only time will reveal. It relies on a set of financial and
demographic assumptions along with prevalent regulatory framework in valuing liability. Thus,
the Plan is exposed to a variety of risk as discussed herein.

1. Discount Rate Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is heavily dependent on the discount rate. As
such, the quantity is highly sensitive to the discount rate and a slight decrease in this assumption
parameter will result in an ultimate cost that is significantly higher and vice versa.

2. Increase in Cost of Transportation Risk

As this benefit is based on the final cost of transportation at the time of retirement in the future,
the actual cost of the plan will depend on the growth rate of transportation cost and inflation over
the years. As such, a higher than expected growth in cost of transportation will result in a cost
which is higher than the estimate. Similarly, lower inflation will result in actual liability being
lower than projected.

3. Employee Turnover Risk

Employee turnover experience of BTL will have a significant impact on the design of the benefit
and consequently the overall cost of the plan. Furthermore, deviation in actual experience from
assumption would also lead to change in the liability of the plan.

4. Demographic Risk
In the absence of credible scheme-specific data, the JALM 2012-14 mortality rate has been used

in projecting the benefits. Thus, deviation of the actual experience from the rates used will result
in change in the cost of the plan.

5. Regulatory Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation has been arrived at using the current set of
regulatory frameworks. As such, any change in the relevant rules and regulations concerning
Carriage Allowance benefit such as increase in Carriage Allowance ceiling, introduction of
Carriage Allowance floor and change in vesting period or benefit accrual rate would eventually
alter the liability.

6. Liquidity Risk
Finally, there is a risk that BTL may not be able to honour the Carriage Allowance payments in
the short-run due to liquidity constraints.
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Note: 44 Disclosure as per BAS 19, ‘Employees Benefit’ as regards defined benefit scheme

(Separation Allowance)
A Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) | 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
1 DBO at end of prior period 7,796,822 7,729,206
2 Current service cost 557,394 519,331
3 Interest cost on the DBO 601,532 590,563
4 Curtailment (credit)/ cost
5 Settlement (credit)/ cost
6 Past service cost - plan amendments
7 Acquisitions (credit)/ cost
8 Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience (91,246) (347,948)
9  'Actuarial (gain)/loss - demographic assumptions
10  Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions 966 |
11 Benefits paid directly by the Company (555,355) | (694,330)
12 Benefits paid from plan assets
13 DBO at end of current period 8,310,113 7,796,822
B Statement of Profit & Loss 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1 Current service cost 567,394 519,331
2 Past service cost - plan amendments -
3 Curtailment cost / (credit) -
4 Settlement cost / (credit) -
5 Service cost 557,394 519,331
6 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 601,532 590,563
- Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term )
employee benefit plans
8 Cost recognized in P&L 1,158,926 1,109,894 |
C Defined Benefit Cost 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
1 Service cost 557,394 519,331 |
| 2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 601,532 590,563
3 Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (90,280) (347,948)
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term i .
employee benefit plans
5 Defined Benefit Cost 1,068,646 761,946
' D Development of Net Financial Position 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)** (8,310,113) = (7,796,822}
2 Fair Value of Plan Assets (FVA) - -
3 Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (8,310,113) | (7,796,822)
4 Net Defined Benefit Liability (8,310,113) |  (7,796,822)
E Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1 Net- defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior (7,796,822 | (7,729,206)
period
2 Service cost (557,394) (519,331)
3 Net interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) (601,532) (590,563}
4 Amount recognized in OCI 91,246 347,948
5 Amount recognized in Profit & Loss Ziisagl - -
6  Employer contributions s’ As;:; : - -
7 Benefit paid directly by the Company ~ / fé*& : %‘ 555,355 | 694,330
8 Acquisitions credit/ (cost) 'l'h:,‘ \% ‘ - -
| % ‘. / %]
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Actuarial (gain) or losses due to change in financial

9 . (966) -
assumptions
10  Withdrawals From the Plan Assets - -
11  Cost of termination benefits B -
. 10  Net defined benefit liability at end of current period (8,310,113) | (7,796 822)
| F Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) . 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
1 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability experience | (91,246) (347,948)
2 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability assumption changes 966 | -
3 Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period (90, 280) (347,948) |
4 Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discountrate - |
5 Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (90,280) (347,948) |
' 6  Adjustment for limit on net asset - -
! Actuarial (Gain) or Loss Recognized via OCI at Current 7
Period End ‘ (50,280) | (347,948)
G Expectedibgnefit payments for the year ending 31-Dec-21 |
December,2022 1,552,611.00
December,2023 1,416,192.00
December,2024 1,567,850.00
1 December,2025 1,531,980.00
December,2026 1,279,554.00
| December,2027 to December 2031 6,684,053.00
| December,2031 to December 2041 16,644,262.00
i. Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 December 2021
ii. Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 9.74 years
iii. Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
a Discount Rate B 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
Discount Rate as at 31 December 2021 0.50% 8.00%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Discount Rate {(272,436) 283,301
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Discount Rate 290,436 (265,663)
b Salary Escalation rate 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
Salary Escalation rate as at 31 December 2021 0.05% 8.00%
Effect on DBO due to 9.5% increase in Salary 311,339 302,494
escalation rate
Effect on DBO due to 9.5 % decrease in Salary (294,339) (286,168)
escalation rate
c Employee Turnover Rate 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20 |
Mortality rate as at 31 December 2021 0.50% 8.00% |
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Mortality 311,339 302,494
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Mortality {294,339) {286,168) |
d Salary Escalation rate 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20 4?
Salary Escalation rate as at 31 December 2021 0.05% 8.00%
iff:ct on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Salary escalation (11,939) 302,494
Eff; 9
rat:ct on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Salary escalahorl__ = 13,232 (286,168)
W~ IR | |
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iv. Risk exposures

Valuing a defined benefit plan is fundamentally an exercise in estimating the future cost of the
benefit, the exact value for which only time will reveal. It relies on a set of financial and
demographic assumptions along with prevalent regulatory framework in valuing liability. Thus,
the plan is exposed to a variety of risk as discussed herein.

1. Discount Rate Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is heavily dependent on the discount rate. As
such, the quantity is highly sensitive to the discount rate and a slight decrease in this assumption
parameter will result in an ultimate cost that is significantly higher and vice versa.

2. Salary Growth Risk

As the Separation Allowance benefit is a final-pay scheme, the actual cost of the plan will depend
on the growth rate of salary over the years. As such, a higher than expected growth in salary will
result in a cost which is higher than the estimate, Similarly, a slower salary growth will result in
actual liability being lower than projected.

3. Employee Turnover Risk

Employee turnover experience of BTL will have a significant impact on the design of the benefit
and consequently the overall cost of the plan. Furthermore, deviation in actual experience from
assumption would also lead to change in the liability of the plan.

4. Demographic Risk

In the absence of credible scheme-specific data, the IALM 2012-14 mortality rate has been used
in projecting the benefits. Thus, deviation of the actual experience from the rates used will result
in change in the cost of the plan.

5. Regulatory Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation has been arrived at using the current set of
regulatory frameworks. As such, any change in the relevant rules and regulations concerning
Separation Allowance benefit such as increase in separation allowance ceiling, introduction of
Separation Allowance floor and change in vesting period or benefit accrual rate would eventually
alter the liability.

6. Liquidity Risk

Finally, there is a risk that BTL may not be able to honour the separation allowance payments in
the short-run due to liquidity constraints.
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Note: 45 Disclosure as per BAS 19, ‘Employees Benefit’ as regards defined benefit scheme

(Travel Allowance)

A ~ Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) | 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec20 |

1 DBO at end of prior period 7,796,822 7,729,206 |

2 Current service cost 557,394 519,331 |
3 Interest cost on the DBO 601,532 590,563
4 Curtailment {credit)/ cost - -
5 Settlement (credit)/ cost - -
6 Past service cost - plan amendments ‘ - -
7  Acquisitions (credit)/ cost - :
8 Actuarial (gain)/loss - experience (91,246) (347,948)
9  Actuarial (gain}/loss - demographic assumptions \ - -
10 Actuarial (gain)/loss - financial assumptions 966 -
11 Benefits paid directly by the Company (555,355) (694,330)

12  Benefits paid from plan assets - |
DBO at end of current period 8,310,113 7,796,822

B Statement of Profit & Loss | 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20 |
1  Current service cost 557,394 519,331
2 Past service cost - plan amendments - -
3 Curtailment cost / (credit) - -
4 Settlement cost / (credit) - -

- 5 Service cost 557,394 519,331
6 Netinterest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 601,532 590,563
7 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term ) )

~* employee benefit plans |
8 Cost recognized in P&L 1,158,926 | 1,109,894
C Defined Benefit Cost B 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20 |
1  Service cost 557,394 519,331 |
2  Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 601,532 590,563
3  Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (90,280) (347,948)
4 Immediate recognition of (gains}/losses ~ other long term

.~ employee benefit plans N

| 5 Defined Benefit Cost 1,068,646 761,946

| D Development of Net Financial Position 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
1 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)** (8,310,113) | (7,796,822)
2 Fair Value of Plan Assets (FVA) - -
3  Punded Status (Surplus/(Deficit)) (8,310,113) | (7,796,822)
4 Net Defined Benefit Liability (8,310,113) | (7,796,822)
E Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet Position 31-Dec-21 | 31-Dec-20
1 Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) at end of prior period - (7,796,822) | (7,729,206)
2 Service cost (557,394) (519,331)
3  Net interest on net defined benefit liability/ {asset) (601,532) (590,563)
4 Amount recognized in OCI 91,246 347,948
5 Amount recognized in Profit & Loss - -

. 6  Employer contributions - -
7  Benefit paid directly by the Company 555,355 694,330
8  Acquisitions credit/ (cost) - -
9 Actuarial (gain) or Losses due to change in financial

. (966) -
assumptions
10 Withdrawals From the Plan Assets - -
11 Cost of termination benefits -
10 Net defined benefit liability at end of current pmod ASs e (s 310 113) | (7,796,822)
= ) 4
RN 5



F Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) 31-Dec-21 = 31-Dec-20
1  Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability experience (91,246) (347,948)
2 Actuarial (gain)/loss due to liability assumption changes 966 -
3 Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period {90,280) (347,948)
4  Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate - -
5 Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (90,280) (347,948)
. 6 Adjustment for limit on net asset 7 - !
Actuarial {(Gain) or Loss F:ecogmzed via OCI at Current (90,280) ‘ (347,948)
Period End " | |
G Expected benefit payments for the year ending 31-Dec-21
1  Less than a year 1,552,611
2  Between 1-2 years 1,416,192
3 Between 2-5 years 4,379,384
5  Over 5 years | 23,328,315
(i) Expected employer contributions for the period ending 31 December 2021
(ii) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 9.74 years
(iii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
L a Discount Rate 31-Dec-21 1-Jan-21
Discount Rate as at 31 December 2021 0.5% 8.00% |
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% (2020: 1%,2019:1%) in discount rate (262,436) (265,663)
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% {2020: 1%,2019:1%) in discount rate 290,378 283,301
| b Salary Escalation rate 31-Dec-21 1-Jan-20 )
| Salary Escalation rate as at 31 December 2021 0.5% 8.00%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% ( 2020: 1%, 2019:1%) increase in salary 311339 302,494 |
escalation rate
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% (2020: 1%, 2019:1%) decrease in salary (294,742) (286,168)
escalation rate
=F Employee Turnover Rate 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
Mortality rate as at 31 December 2021 0.50% 8.00%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Mortality 311,339 302,494
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Mortality (294,339) (286,168)
b Salary Escalation rate 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
Salary Escalation rate as at 31 December 2021 0.05% 8.00%
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in Salary escalation rate (11,939) 302,494
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in Salary escalation rate 13,232 (286,168)
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(iv) Risk exposures
Valuing a defined benefit plan is fundamentally an exercise in estimating the future cost of the
benefit, the exact value for which only time will reveal. It relies on a set of financial and

demographic assumptions along with prevalent regulatory framework in valuing liability. Thus,
the Plan is exposed to a variety of risk as discussed herein.

1. Discount Rate Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is heavily dependent on the discount rate. As
such, the quantity is highly sensitive to the discount rate and a slight decrease in this assumption
parameter will result in an ultimate cost that is significantly higher and vice versa.

2. Salary Growth Risk

As the Travel allowance benefit is a final-pay scheme, the actual cost of the plan will depend on
the growth rate of salary over the years. As such, a higher than expected growth in salary will
result in a cost which is higher than the estimate. Similarly, a slower salary growth will result in
actual liability being lower than projected. '

3. Employee Turnover Risk

Employee turnover experience of BTL will have a significant impact on the design of the benefit
and consequently the overall cost of the plan. Furthermore, deviation in actual experience from
assumption would also lead to change in the liability of the plan.

4, Demographic Risk

In the absence of credible scheme-specific data, the IALM 2012-14 mortality rate has been used
in projecting the benefits. Thus, deviation of the actual experience from the rates used will result
in change in the cost of the plan.

5. Regulatory Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation has been arrived at using the current set of
regulatory frameworks. As such, any change in the relevant rules and regulations concerning
Travel allowance benefit such as increase in Travel allowance ceiling, introduction of Travel
allowance floor and change in vesting period or benefit accrual rate would eventually alter the
liability.

6. Liquidity Risk

Finally, there is a risk that BTL may not be able to honour the Travel allowance payments in the
short-run due to liquidity constraints.
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Note 46: Related Party Disclosure

1. Related Party Disclosure

As identified by the management and in accordance with the Bhutanese Accounting Standard -
24 following are the list of related parties;

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken
place during the period and relationships:

i.  Parent and Subsidiary:

Nature of relationship Name of entity Acronym used
| Holding Company Druk Holding & Investment Ltd. DHI
ii. Key Management Personnel
Position Name . Remarks
Chairperson Mr. Pema L Dorji Present
Director Mr. Chencho T. Namgay Present
Director Mr. Gonpo Tenzin Present
Director Mzr. Jigme Tenzing Present
Director Dr. Lam Dorji Present
Director Ms. Jamyang Choeden Present
Chief Executive Officer Mr. Karma Jurme Present
iii, Entities under Common Control o
Nature of relationship Name of entity Ac:::gm |
Subsidiary of Holding Company | Bhutan Power Corporation Limited BPC
Subsidiary of Holding Company | Drukair Corporation Limited DACL
Subsidiary of Holding Company | Druk Green Power Corporation DGPC
Subsidiary of Holding Company | Dungsam Cement Corporation Ltd DCCL
Subsidiary of Holding Company | Natural Resource Development Corporation Ltd NRDCL
Subsidiary of Holding Company | Construction Development Corporation Ltd CDCL
Subsidiary of Holding Company | Wood Craft Center Ltd WCCL
Subsidiary of Holding Company | State Mining Corporation Ltd SMCL
Subsidiary of Holding Company | Koufuku International Private Ltd KIPL
Subsidiary of Holding Company LMif:i]t(; I:lg Sorig, Fhagmacegticals Copogatian MSPCL
Controlled Company of Holding Bank of Bhutan Ltd BOBL
Company
Controlled Company of Holding Dungsam Polymers Ltd DPL
Company
 Controlled Company of Holding State Trading Corporation Of Bhutan Ltd STCBL
Company
Linked Company of Holding | g .\ Board Product Ltd BBPL
Company
Linked Company of Holding ' Penden Cement Authority Ltd PCAL |
. Company |
a) Transactions with related parties during the year:
Government Agencies -
. . . e Acronym
| Nature of relationship | Name of entity P ALK used
| Government Agencies | Ministry of Education I L§'T" e\ MoE |
Y oxf = )
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Government Agencies Ministry of Labour& Human Resource MoLHR
Government Agencies Ministry of Works & Human Settlement MoWHS
Government Agencies Ministry of Foreign Affairs MoFA
Government Agencies Ministry of Finance MoF
Government Agencies Ministry of Economic Affairs MoEA ‘
Government Agencies Ministry of Home & Culture Affairs MoHCA
Government Agencies Ministry of Health MoHCA
Government Agencies Ministry of Agriculture & Forestry MoAF ‘
Government Agencies Ministry of Information and Communication MolC |
i. Board sitting fee paid to Board Directors
Sitting Fee
Name of Board of Directors Particulars 2021 2020
Mr. Pema L Dorji Chairperson 84,000 64,000
Mr. Chencho T. Namgay Director 132,000 76,000
Mr. Gonpo Tenzin Director 100,000 92,000
Mr. Jigme Tenzing Director 112,000 92,000
Dr. Lam Dorji Director 80,000 48,000
Ms. Jamyang Choeden Director 28,000 72,000
Dr. Damber S. Kharka** Director - 36,000
Mr. Dechen Dorji** Director - 20,000
536,000 500,000
ii. Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration:
Name Particulars 2021 2020
Mr. Karma Jurme Salary 2,770800 | 2,659,600
(Present) Leave travel concession 15,000 15,000
Leave Encashment 115,450 114,450
Salary Arrears - -
Bonus and PBVA 332,450 478,754
Contribution to superannuation fund 207,816 199,472
Sitting fee 140,000 112,000
Total 3,581,516 | 3,579,276
L Intergroup transaction with the DOC companies:
GROUP GL CODE | GCOA Ledger Entity | ™70 | 2021.0EC | Amount
4107010514 fc"m‘““““a“"" S i BTL | LCDCL | 2021.DEC | (1,561,713)
rom DHI Group companies
1212010001 Capital Work-in-Progtess BTL 1. CDCL | 2021.DEC | 16,187,372
2103010302 Intragroup trade pavable BTL | 1 CDCL | 2021.DEC | (12,275647)
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL MSPCL | 2021.DEC | 1,314
3109010043 Intra Group Miscellaneous Expenses BTL MSPCL | 2021.DEC 184,080
4107010514 f"“‘m“mcat“’“ S I yevenne BTL | MSPCL | 2021.DEC | (15,258)
rom DHI Group companies
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL I_DC01 | 2021.DEC 127,649
Communication and ICT revenue
] 4107010514 from DHI Group companies BTL 1. DCO1 | 2021.DEC | (1,605,904)
4107010504 g‘t‘*mt foeSe o ioand #o DEI BTL | 1DCO1 | 2021.DEC | (4,931,507)
roup companies |
1213030001 E}‘fjc“;t:;l;‘;t:f computersand | BTL | LSTCBL | 202LDEC | 9765
1213050001 Vehicles § Sf-lﬁ; 4 I_STCBL | 2021.DEC 233,360
v = oty
4107010514 ggﬁ‘g‘;;‘gi‘:‘;;ﬁiﬁ:em; BTL .} STCBL | 2021.DEC | (2,065,902)
1.1 ’
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- |
| 4107010504 o el o SRR BTL | LSTCBL | 2021.DEC | (5,369,863)
‘ Group companies |
| : . .
3107010012 Running & Maintenance Of Vehicle- | gy | | grepp | 2021.0EC | 1,151,487
Intergroup -
4107010514 it e el BTL | IDPO1 |2021.DEC | (571,101)
from DHI Group companies
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL 1 DP01 | 2021.DEC 137,227
2103010302 Intragroup trade pavables BTL | LTIPL | 2021.DEC | (8,436)
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL I_TTPL | 2021.DEC | 123,191
4107010514 TRt AL T e BTL | LTTPL | 2021.DEC ] (639,918) |
from DHI Group companies | [ —— ‘ A
3109010616 Rental Expenses paid to DHLGroup | _TTPL | 2021.DEC | 101,530
Companies |
4107010524 Inter Group Miscellaneous Income BTL | ILTIPL | 2021.DEC | (772,200) |
1111010103 Intergroup Advance BTL | LTIPL | 2021.DEC | 10,800
1212010001 Capital Work-in-Progress BTL | LTIPL | 2021.DEC | 7,636,406
2503010008 | ntragroup Dividends relating to BTL | LDI0O1 |2021.DEC | 1,550,000,000
current year
3109010617 Inter group Brand management Fees BTL I.DIO1 | 2021.DEC | 32,564,849
2501010001 Equity Shares held by DHI BTL | 1.DI0OL | 2021.DEC | (854,082,000)
4107010514 ommunication ANcUE L revenus BTL | I_DIO! |2021.DEC | (1,584,677)
from DHI Group companies
4107010524 Inter Group Miscellaneous Income BTL I DI01 | 2021.DEC (229,290) |
3109010041 Intragroup Lease Rent BTL | 1 DIO1 | 202L.DEC | 383,169 |
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL | I D01 | 2021.DEC | 736,491
4107010514 Communication and ICT revenue | gy |y v | 2021.DEC | (2,340,220)
from DHI Group companies
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL I_SMCL | 2021.DEC 83,314
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL I PCAL | 2021.DEC 69,273
4107010514 Somuynicabion (AJILY Teveiie BTL | I_PCAL |2021.DEC | (703,683)
from DHI Group companies
4107010514 Communication and ICT revenue | gry | | \RDCL, | 2021.DEC | (1,890,612)
from DHI Group companies 3=
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL | I NRDCL | 2021.DEC 136,107
1213030001 Furniture, fixtures, computersand | gy |y NRpCL | 2021DEC | 26,500
office equipment
4107010514 Communicationand Jt 1 revenue BTL | I_DACL | 2021.DEC | (3,583,394)
from DHI Group companies
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL I_DACL | 2021.DEC 541,134
4107010521 RETEE WEONEOI GIoUp BTL | I_DACL |2021.DEC| (73,702)
Companies it
4107010514 Communicationand ICT revenue | gy | 1 pGoy | 2020.DEC | (2,398,796)
from DHI Group companies
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL | 1DGO1 | 2021.DEC | 1,889,820
3109010616 e Pald B DL BTL | I.DGO1 |2021.DEC| 16,728
Group Companies
4107010508 Service Revenue from DHIGroup | gy | 1 pgor | 2020.DEC | (6,661,792)
companies
2103060302 Intragroup deposits received BTL I DGO1 | 2021.DEC | 2,923,308
1101020103 Balances with BOBL BTL | I_BOBL | 2021.DEC | 1,933,651,178
1109020104 Intragroup deposits BTL | I_BOBL | 2021.DEC | 5,000,000
4107010521 Rental Income from Group BIL | I_BOBL |2021.DEC | (2,744,000)
Companies
4107010522 Tiitra Group Commission Sie 8:' Agf~BIL | LBOBL |2021.DEC | (782766)
| Brokage Income S5
» ‘1 \O \
| 3109010044 Intréesroup Cotmmisgs “‘7"1 BYL | I_BOBL |2021.DEC | 127,097,130
{ Brokage fees o | — s |
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4107010514 Communicationand ICT revenue | gy | BopL, | 2021.DEC | (12,223,662)
from DHI Group companies
1101030002 g;‘fﬁ;“cr“ed onshort-termbank | gy |y gopy | 2021DEC | 278,836
3109010627 Electricity Charges - paid to DHI BIL | LBPC |2021.DEC| 315373844
Group companies
4107010514 Communication and ICT revenue BTL | IBPC |2021.DEC| (9,260,946)
from DHI Group companies ‘ - |
3109010616 e Lo DL BIL | LBPC |2021DEC | 3,941,5%
Group Companies |
1213040001 Cabk_e:s‘and Power System BTL IL I_BPC 2021.DEC 11,876,863
2103060302 Intragroup deposits received BTL | [ BPC |2021.DEC | 1,219,298
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL I_BPC | 2021.DEC 744,723
4107010514 Commiuiication and ICT revenue BTL | LTHEL | 2021.DEC | (1,297,168)
from DHI Group companies
1109010102 Intragroup trade receivables BTL L THEL | 2021.DEC 105,261
4107010514 Communicationand ICT revenue | ppy |y gy | 2021.DEC| (151,071)
from DHI Group companies
iv. Outstanding Balances with Holding Company
Particulars Amount
Paid-up share capital - 4,000,000,000
Intergroup trade receivable L 736,491
v. OQutstanding balances with Entities under Common Control
Particulars Amount
Trade Receivables 4,695,505 |
Trade Payable 12,284,082
47. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities |
a) Capital Commitments
Particulars 2021 2020
5G project 99,999,451
Additional Mobile Sites 94,090,985
Construction of Residential Building at Jakar 44,439,000
ERP Next Project 7,887,096
Highway Mobile projects 20,702,331
Integration of DSL and Off-load to PCRF 6,940,000
LTE Expansion project 133,267,806
Power System project 11,681,682
Rural Communication Project VI 125,833,397
Tower Replacement/ Relocation Project 6,169,397
VoLTE IMS Project 213,690,125
LTE1800 Expansion 16,401,194
Amount of contracts remaining to be executed on residential |
building at Paro P~ 54,083,480 | 18,667,239 |
Amount of contracts remaining to be executed on res{ aI ‘ oo \
building at Gelephu ‘ 5% c’% \ 47,824,152 | 18,492,108 |
| x| ) *
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Amount of contracts remaining to be executed on residential ‘

I .
building at Jakar - 38,878,625 |

48. Leases

Operating lease: Company as lessee

“The company has entered into operating lease as defined in BAS-17 on ""Leases"
“Disclosure regarding minimum lease rental in case of non- cancellable operating leases:

Total of future Minimum Lease payments under Non-cancellable operating leases for each of the
following periods:"

Total of future minimum lease payments under Non-cancellable operating leases for each of the
following periods:

Particulars | 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20

(i) Not later than one year | 3,826,800 3,578,641
(i) Later than one year but not later than five years. 11,478,980 11,070,713
(iii) Later than five years 11,894,759 11,725,942
Total | 27,200,539 26,375,296

Operating lease:

Company as lessor
Total of future minimum lease receipts under Non-cancellable operating leases for each of the
following periods:

Particulars 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20
(i) Not later than one 2,681,176 2,652,838
year
(if) Later than one year but not later than five years. 3,231,940 ‘ 3,231,940
(iii} Later than five years - | -
Total 5,913,116 ‘ 5,884,778
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RATIO ANALYSIS



BHUTAN TELECOM LIMITED

Ratio Analysis for the year ended 31st December, 2021

! ~ Particulars | 2021 2020
1. LIQUIDITY
A. Current Ratio 2141 2721

| B. Quick Ratio: 2011 2.68:1
Quick Assets/Quick Liabilities
C. Accounts Receivable Period 41.35 Days 36.71 Days
365/ Accounts receivable turnover

\
D. Working Capital to Sales 26.32% 23.55%
Average Current Assets-Average Current
Liabilities/ Net sales
2. SOLVENCY:
A. Term Debt to Total Fixed Assets 9.64% 14.96%
Long term Debt/Total Fixed Asset-Net
B. Debt Equity Ratio: 0.07:1 0.11:1
Debt/ (Capital Fund+Reserve & Surplus)
3. PROFITABILITY:
A. Return on Capital Employed:
a) PBT/Capital Employed 46.46% 36.80%
b) PAT/Capital Employed 31.551% 25.088%
Capital Employed=Equity Capital + Loan Fund

0 o,
B. Return on Equity: 33.99% 28.05%
Profit After Tax/Total Equity
Total Equity= Capital + Reserve & Surplus
C. Return on Sales o4.64% 48.24%
PBT/Operating Income
o, 0,
D. Employee Cost to Gross Income 7.637% 8:159%
Total Employee Expenses/Operating Income
3.07 million 2.34 million

E. Profit per Employee:
PAT/Total no. of Employees

o
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COMPLIANCE CALENDAR AND CHECKLIST



COMPLIANCE CALANDAR

:11(') Activity Section Remarks ,
a. Submission of
Annual Return
Companies listed with
Royal Securities a) As per Annual
1 E;cl‘}ange of Bhutan Return Form for a
Limited 267 period relating to
a) ) . financial year
lel]ugllsted companies ended on 31t
mcludes:
i) Duly filled form as b) Filed the annual return vide cover letter December.
er Annual Return reference number BT/CA/Cors/2021/6
b dated 24 June, 2021 b) Should be duly
3 authenticated by at
“) Balar'lce sheet least one director
;1) Proﬁtt & Loss and the Chief
ceoun Executive Office
iv) Cash flow statement o
v) Auditor’s report
. vi) Directors’ report.
b. Annual |
2 General Meeting
a) To be conducted
b) Listed Companies 177 <} Annual General Meeting held on 26% once a year besides
<) Unlisted Companies March, 2021 other meeting
Government Board Cum AGM |
. Companies
I Notice sent 21 days before the meeting on |
3 ' Notice Calling General 185 March 01, 2021 for AGM on 26t March, 2021 NA to PVT. LTD
' Meetings vide cover letter reference number ’
‘ BTL/Board/2021/AGM —
50% dividend paid on 16% April 2021 and
204 balance 50% paid on 2274 June, 2021. The
4 Payment of Dividend 180 AGM approved the dividend of 38.75%
| of share capital and resolved to have the
| dividend paid in two instalments. .
Presentation of B/S . . .
: Presentation of Financial Statement done to
5 | poAeand CashElow | 20 | the 18" AGM held on 26" March 2021 and | 0 PO of
tatement at every Directors
AGM adopted by AGM
J— Annual return filed accerdingly on June 24,
6 Fl.l :;: %Of D to iuments 267 2021 vide cover letter reference number
| W Hegister L BT/CA/Cors/2021/6
| c. Appointinent | 75,
of auditor Appointment of Auditors done by RAA Every year at AGM
GCC & GC vide letter number RAA(SA-07) from pane] of
- Reappointment /COAD/2021/ 2316 dated 10% December, auditors-RAA AG
Removal 2021 and 18* Annual General Meeting of Bhutan.
rectified the Statutory Auditors Not more than 3
260- appointment = | years
Resignation 262 - B Asd
Consent to act as . . J S/ o
8 directors 140 No new Director appointment | J f % \
1:'\l'{ \ 2 )N
N g c’;"-‘
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T T
Board Meetings | Quorum:
162rd BM Jan 29, 2021: 2 months after last BM Full (7/7).
1634 BM Mar 10, 2021:1 month 10 days after last BM Full (7/7).
164t BM Apr 30, 2021: 1 month 10 days after last BM | Full (7/7).
165" BM 146 | June 17, 2021:1 month 17 days after last BM | Present (6/7)

9 166t BM & Aug 02, 2021: 1 month 16 days after last BM | Present (5/7)
167t BM 149 | Sep 14, 2021: 1 month 12 days after last BM, | Present (6 /7 w
168th BM QOct 07, 2021: 1 month 23 days after last BM | Present (6/7) ‘
169t BM Oct 02, 2021: T month 16 days after last BM = Present (5/7)
170t BM Oct 29, 2021: 27 days after last BM Present (5/7)
171¢t BM Nov 21, 2021: 22 days after last BM Present (5/7}

10 Appointment of CEO 210 Every 3 years | Smmg HE NS

- : vear term

‘ All the tariff revision has been approved by
BICMA.
1. Voice & SMS tariff revision vide

\ letter no. BICMA-MCD/BTL/2020-

1 21/5280 dated April 7, 2021
2. Student packages vide letter no. Prescribing forms,

Power of Regulatory BICMA/BTL/104/Tariff/ 211 dated | Payments of fees,
11 Authority to accord 412 August 5, 2021 generally for the
approval 3. Subscription fee for call signature purpose of this
vide letter no. Act.
BICMA/MCD/BTL/VAS/760
dated November 18, 2021
4. Data Plan Revision vide letter no.
BICMA /MCD/BTL/ Tariff(mobile)/
| 836 dated November 30, 2021
I
l Listed companies+ |
. ‘ Company Secretary appointment is Companies with
12 éggl ‘;:;;‘g‘;;‘:im 1213 | endorsed by the 167 Board Meeting held ore g
on September 14, 2021 Nu.100,000,000 as
paid up capital
Statutory registers like Board Director

13 Statutory Record and 228 register, shareholder register and register of

Inspection charges are maintained and updated when
- there are changes.
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COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST

Name of Company: Bhutan Telecom Limited

Check List for Compliance to Provision of the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016

' INCORPORATION OF A
No. | Ss. COMPANY & SECURITIES YES NO | NA REMARKS
1 28 | Changes to Articles/ Approval v =
2 47 | Change of name/ Approval 8 | _ 1=
3 123 | Increase or consolidation of share v
| capital —
|4 124 | Reduction of share capital v i
5 82 | License Copy and Share Certificate Since Company is not listed, shares
' filing v of the company have not been
dematerialized. Company has
maintained the shares certificates.
6 107 | Public offer of shares & v
u, Debentures-ROC Approval | 1
MANAGEMENT & ADMINISTRATION
7 217 | Registered Office of Company ' Drophen Lam 2/28 | Post Box No.
(Postal Address & Contact v '}ﬁm - [
Number) imphu: Bhutan | +975-02-343434
www.bt.bt
8 221 | Publication of name by Company v
(Letter Head, Seals and Sign Board)
9 241 | Financial Year of Companies as of v Compiled
31st Dec.
242 | Extension up to 15 months - ROC ~ | No change in the reporting period,
approval as this is being strictly monitored as
243 | Extension up to 18 months - ~ | perthe DHI ownership policy.
Authority's approval o
10 245 | Financial Statements to follow BAS ¥ Compliance to be andited strictly
| 1 267 | Annual Return Submissic?n Annual return flIed accordingly on
On/before 31st May for listed; v June 24, 2021 vide cover letter
others 31st July reference number
| BT/CA/Cors/2021/6
| 12| 177 | Annual General Meeting (Minutes) v | Maintained
13 180 | Extraordinary General Meeting v Maintained
(Minutes)
14 185 | Notice for calling general meeting Notice sent 21 days before the
' meeting on March 01, 2021 for AGM
v on 26 March, 2021 vide cover letter
| reference number
| BTL/Board/2021/AGM
15 187 | listed Co. - written as well as in v
media
Public Co/Private Co. - Written v Notice sent to shareholders and
Notice auditors
16 190 | Chairman of meeting (CEO cannot v Board Chairman
chair)
Y/ 192 | Representation of corporations at Just have one shareholder (DHI)
meetings (appointed by Board v | and the Chair, CEO and key
Directors) officials represent Shareholder.
18 193 | Ordinary and special resolutions v
(Minutes)
19 195 | Minutes of Annual General Board meeting endorsed within 14
| Meeting and Board Meetings v 7 &"A‘q“l h days from the date of meeting.
| | (maintained ss.195-198) P sl Y
4 Q‘ \'?‘ \\
f 7 o |
1>\ *l!
\ &Y 70




. | Dividend is declared only upon
20 199 gii?;ggo(q;gngog?ymem i v l assessing the Net profit of the
| company,
Books of account to be kept ‘
21 232 company (location & timtg » ' v | NoChange
2 g;axzd's re;';ort (signed by v LA/lamtzliI::f‘o i?:cﬁuréi':;lc‘l in
ajirman nnu 0 2
Appointment and removal of
3 259 Auditors v Appointment formalized in 18%
Need to re-appoint annually (251- AGM, as always.
259) |
24 | 260 ?ﬁffngff:fﬁl‘sﬁ rﬁ:g:;”s brom Ofﬁ‘:‘i v No resignation happened for the FY
Auditing standards (Audit using Auditors TOR and appointment are
25 266 | Auditing Standards issued by v recommended by RAA and
AASBB) —= formalized in AGM.
26 133 | Number of directors v Five Non-Executive & Independent
7 134 One third of all Public Companies v directors | one non-executive &
shall be independent Non-independent director | one
executive & non- independent
- . director | all directors are appointed
28 138 (Mm}mum No. & retirement on v fora twoI year term except fsf the
rotation) executive and non-independent
| director.
29 | 139 | Additional directors v None
30 | 140 | Consent to act as directors v
31 141 Certain persons not to be appointed ~ | Appointment are based on
as Directors recommendation from DHI
32 142 | Resignation by a director v
33 143 | Removal of directors v 2N0(; ;‘emoval of directors happened in
24 146 Board meetings (4 Meetings for v Total of ten board meetings
Public Cos & 2 Meetings for Pvt) happened in 2021
35 152 | General powers of the board v Compiled
Complied, as issues pertaining to
36 156 | Restriction on powers of Board v restrictive powers of Board is always
submitted to AGM or EGM.
Appointment of Chief Executive .
37 210 Offli)cer {(Max 5 years termsé 2 v tCeEO reappointed for the second
N rm of three years
consecutive terms only)
28 213 Company Secretary required in all v Compiled but BT is not public
Public Companies company
Appointment of selling or buying No changes, except the registrar has
39 414 | agents (govt. Approval obtained or v | instructed the filing of annual
not) returns online from 2020.
40 157 II:TO lc.)ans to directors (only for v No loans to the directors
ublic Co.)
Inter-corporate investments
41 53 | (investments to be disclosed) apply v None
old rule
. . Conflict of declaration is signed for
42 158 gg::l(;d of Interest Transactions by v all the board and committee
meetings.
Section 161 belongs to director
prey [ power and his duties in the interest
43 161 St.andard of care requir_er._:l by v ,,; 8 4 9; | of company. In addition to the.
directors (Reckless decision} j \r’:\ ' ~Og_ ,‘Icompany' s act of Bhutan. BTL is
l' MJ : "“;41 governed by the DHI corporate
1o % governance code.
¥
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STATUTORY RECORD AND INSPECTION

44 = 228 | Statutory record and inspection v Maintained.
(@) Register of buy-back of shares Not required as BT is not a
listed company.
(b) Register of transfers Not required as BT just has one
shareholder.
(© Register of charges v id:cizutz;i;eg il:,}j's f;:;lance &
@ Register of inter-corporate loans v I;/[:ci(r;ﬁli:\sed by Finance &
Register of inter-corporate investments Not required as there are no
(e) &l P o
investments
Register of contracts in which directors Conflicts are declared for every
® are interested v meetings and it is alwa.ys
annexed to the respective
meetings
(g) | Register of directors v Maintained.
h Register of directors' shareholding Non-of the directors hold share,
() as it is not a listed company.
Y R
/‘b b'l‘ é 9\80 o
(S %
: Q;’ %
,\“ KA" 4;( )
\Q\(%%I ¢ s {‘\\‘h?
Vo pestS
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MANAGEMENT APPRAISAL REPORT




MANAGEMENT APPRAISAL REPORT

AUDIT FINDINGS OF RECOMMENDATORY IN NATURE

1 Non deposit of excess fund into interest bearing account

The current ratio of more than 2:1 indicates that there is idle fund in the company. It is
evident from the current year current ratio of 2.14:1. Also the company has Cash &
bank balance amounting to Nu.2,056,469,063.00 lying idle in non-interest-bearing
accounts as on 31.12.2021.

The fund should have been invested either in the expansion of business or in the fixed
deposit/bonds. This fund has remained without generating any income, which is an
opportunity lost. Therefore, it is recommended that excess fund be invested in the
financial institutions/banks irrespective of the rate of interest instead of keeping it idle
in the account.

Auditee’s Response:

Bhutan Telecom would like to thank the statutory audit team for highlighting on the excess fund
balance amounting to Nu. 2,056,469,063.00in our accounts as on 31.12.2021, however, as per
the approved delegation of power, management has authority to invest in fixed deposits in
banks/RMA bills/and short-term treasury bonds only. Further as we are aware the RMA bills
and short-term treasury bonds are not active market in the country, the option that management
had was to make investment in fixed deposits with the financial institutions in the country.
Hence, Finance & Accounts Division has explored investment avenues and discussed with
financial institutions. But the proposals for short terms were denied by some banks/corporate
entities due to excess liquidity with the banks. The banks which agreed to accept short terms
deposits offered very minimal interest rate ie 0.15% to 0 .20%. The details of the
correspondences initiated are detailed in the following lines which is readily available for
confirmation.

1. On 22nd March,2021 Finance & Accounts Division initiated and explored with Bank of
Bhutan

2. On 29t June, 2021 with Druk Punjab National Bank.

3. On 16" July,2021 with BNB

The memo is treated as settled:

We acknowledge the response from the management and appreciate that every possibility was
explored to invest in the Fixed Deposit but the banks have offered minimal rate of interest. We
recommend that the management should invest the excess cash in interest bearing account in the
future to at least earn whatever rate of interest is being offered by the banks. Based on the
management’s response the memo is treated as settled.

Compliance to be made:

The management should invest the excess liquidity with banks in interest bearing account in the
future. The compliance shall be verified in next audit.




2. Poor Service Delivery

Many remote villages do not have access to proper mobile internet services and the
public has to come to the nearest town to access the internet. This problem has been
faced by many schools & students, when they have to access internet to take online
classes.

Poor Service quality is evident from the fines imposed by Bhutan Info-com and Media
Authority (BICMA) recently, for not meeting the quality of services.

Therefore, there is a serious need to review the quality of mobile internet service
especially in the rural villages.

Also going by the cash balance, the company had excess liquidity, which could have
been channelled for improvement of its services. Even the debt equity ratio stood at
0.07:1, indicating the company is conservative in leveraging on debt, thereby slowing
down the expansion of business.

Therefore, we would like to recommend the management to leverage debt to expand
the services to the remote corners besides bringing in new services. In return it will
bring long term benefits in terms of improving the cash flow, building the assets of the
company and will derive good returns. Besides there are lots of tax benefits to the
company, which will help to improve the cash flow of the company. This will bring
proportionate growth to the company in the long run, which will be one of the
expectations of the shareholders.

Auditee’s Response:

We would like to submit that BT as a responsible State-owned telco has been putting in all
possible efforts to improve the quality of its Internet service in the country, mobile Internet in
particular. Ensuring quality of service to our customers therefore has always been at the core of
BT’s overall operations strategy, both during normal times and emergency situations.

In keeping with its mandates and the primary objective to enhance quality of services, BT has
been investing millions of Ngultrums every year. In 2021, for instance, BT invested in excess of
Nu. 696.80 million just on the mobile network coverage expansion and enhancement of
capacities, and for 2022, a total budget of Nu. 797.43 million has been approved for mobile
service enhancement alone.

Extra efforts over and above normal network coverage expansion plans are also being put in
continuously to upgrade the capacities of the existing 4G nodes where technically feasible. Where
existing nodes have hit the max limit and technically not feasible to increase capacity, for dense
clusters like Thimphu, the company has been putting in place densifying cell sites installed on
15-meter mono poles. These densifying sites sitting closer to the users would supplement both in
terms of capacity and coverage, in the areas either not at all served or poorly served by the main
towers.

Therefore, issues that BT has been facing with the quality of its service is not really because of
the shortfalls in the fund. The service quality issues are rather more to do with technical design
and dimensioning of our system capacities. BT’s network capacities are designed and
dimensioned to only cater to traffic loads in a normal condition, which is typically a standard
practice that telcos elsewhere may also be adopting for dimensioning their telecom network. It is
not and cannot be viable for any telcos to invest on extra capacities in advance in order to be able
to cater to the capacity demands during abnormal conditions such as the lockdowns due to
outbreak of diseases or any natural disasters.

Performance of our mobile network is therefore expected to degrade during abnormal conditions
despite continuous coverage expansion and capacity enhancement efforts. During the current
lockdown for instance, with employees of all agencies working from home, we have been seeing
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abnormal pressure on the capacity of our Internet infrastructure, our mobile network
infrastructure in particular due to which some of our cell sites have not been able to meet the
expected quality of service.

In light of the fact that the issue with the quality of BT's mobile service is not to do with the
company not willing to invest on enhancing the infrastructure capacity to improve the quality of
service, either through internal funds or loans, but rather to do with some technical limitations,
we would like to request that this memo on the leveraging of debt to improve the quality of
service be kindly be dropped.

The memo is treated as settled:

Based on the response and justification of the management the memo is treated as settled.

Compliance to be made:

The effort made by the management in improving the services is acknowledged. However, we
urge the management to leverage debt or invest portion of excess liquidity to improve and
provide the best services to the public, generate wealth, and to maximize the return to meet the
expectation of the shareholder. The compliance shall be verified in next audit.
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PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FOLLOW UP REPORT




Summary of Follow-up Report for Statutory Audit for the year 2020 and prior years

Accounting Year | No. of Recommendation Balance Becomsnindations 5 be
)/2(/)20 ‘1 2
Detailed Follow-up Report for the year ended 31st December, 2020

 No.

Purchase of Set Top Boxes without proper
feasibility study -Nu. 2.2 million (3.3.4)

The Bhutan Telecom Limited had procured
Set Top Boxes worth Nu.2.2 million four
years ago for launching IP TV services.
However, due to regulatory restrictions of
launching IP TV services and the
requirement to take a separate license to
operate IP TV Service, the set top boxes
could not be put to use as planned. The
management explored to resale the set top
boxes to the TV Cable operators but due to
some technical issues the equipment’s
became obsolete and it could not be sold.

Accordingly, the write-off proposal was
submitted to the Board and approved
write-off during the 159 Board meeting
held on 23/11/2020 with the advice to
diligently follow the process involved in
disposing off the set top boxes.

However, the said equipment were lying
idle in the store without being disposed as
per the instruction of the Board of
Directors till the date of audit (February
2021).

Therefore, the management needs to

It is submitted that as soon as the audit raised the concern, the
management has explored options in diligently disposing off
the set top boxes by contacting the supplier of the set top boxes,
requesting local TV Cable Operators and others through phone
calls, email correspondences inviting them to explore if the
equipment could be put to use for their services but to our
dismay, none of the parties were interested to buy the set top
boxes.

The management having not much option, it was submitted to
the 166" Board meeting for further advices on the disposal of
the set top boxes. Since the set-top boxes were obsolete and
there were also no private firms interested to buy, Board
resolved to have the Set-Top boxes auctioned as scarp, when
the next BTL auction is held. It is likely the auction may not
happen this year since the normal place of auction which
usually happens at Phuntsholing falls under the high risk area.

In view of the above submission, the audit is requested to
kindly consider the observation dropped.

As per the justification
and supporting
documents  furnished
for the procurement of
set-top boxes without
feasibility study, same
issue has been raised to
Board by management
the and decided to
auction the set-top
boxes as scrap (as per
166"

Board

resolution).
However, management
has not yet auctioned
the set top box due to
abnormal  situation
(Covid). Thus, memo
will  be  pursued

further.

Meeting

Partially
Implemented
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furnish justification for not disposing off
the said equipments.

Migration of SAP ERP system to ERP
Next by 2021

The management of Bhutan Telecom
Limited apprised the Board that the cost of
the SAP ERP on cloud is quite high
compared with the ERP Next in the 159t
Board Meeting held on 30/10/2020.
Accordingly, in the 160%"Board Meeting
dated 23/11/20, the Board decided to
migrate BT’s SAP ERP system to ERP Next
in the year 2021. In this regard the
following audit view on SAP ERP were
offered:

o Improving efficiency

o Reduced Inventory. SAP allows
visibility of Inventory across the
company. When Inventory value
are in millions, which is a dead
money, reducing inventory balance
through insights can be calculated
in terms of monetary value.

o Extracting better returns from the
Assets which can be maintained
well through SAP insights and
timely  alerts. =~ When  asset
breakdown is less, returns are
higher. This can be calculated in
terms of monetary value based on
Asset value of the organization.

o Better employee Productivity when
every employee Plans and PMS are
done well through system.

o Better controlling using Budgeting
system, centralized procurement

We would like to thank and take note of the recommendation
made by the statutory auditor.

The SAP project was initiated in the year 2013 with the
project budget of Nu. 142,075,960.85. The project was
initiated because the then Telecom Integrated Information and
Management System (TIIMS) was having issues especially
with the integration of different modules and the system was
not in position to handle the growing volume of transactions.

The project duration for the SAP system was one year and the
system went live on 1st July 2014. While the basic ERP
modules like Finance and Accounting, Human Resource,
Project systems, Materials management, plant Management
and Budgeting systems were from SAP systems, however the
postpaid system: Billing Business Support Control System
(BSCS) and prepaid IN systems were from Ericsson. These
systems could not be moved to SAP project scope, firstly
because of the technical compatibility and secondly due to
commercial reasons.

The useful life of the ERP system (hardware) was five years,
and the assets were fully depreciated by 2019. The hardware
had to be refreshed meaning that whole hardware had to be
changed by 2020 as per the recommendation made by SAP.

However, with technical assistance provided by the vendor,
we managed to run the system for an additional year till the
end of 2021. But post mid 2021, the vendor has informed us
that, no further technical support on the hardware can be
provided, since the hardware are already outdated, and
support services were not available. Based on this information,
the management explored the options of refreshing the whole
hardware for SAP system Vs. deployment of a new ERP
system.

The Company  had
made huge investment
in implementing the
SAP ERP in 2013-
2014. The decision to
migrate  from SAP
ERP to ERP Next
within a span of 7
years would undo all
investments made in

SAP  ERP.  The
Company should
substantiate and

provide evidence that
they have derived full
value for money from
SAP ERP within these
eight years (2014-
2022).

Not
Implemented




enabled by SAP.

o All process are automated and
online

o All book keeping and operational
works are automated so all
employees can focus on high value
and core business related works for
better revenue generation.

The commercials for refreshing the hardware for SAP system
and considering the integration cost with BSCS and IN
system Vs. deployment of new ERP solution was analyzed on
commercial and performance ground. It was recommended
from the study that commercially taking into recurring
payments like Annual Maintenance Contract, License fee
payments and other support cost, it was cheaper for BTL to
invest in new ERP rather than refreshing the SAP hardware.
On the features of the systems, both were equally good.

BTL has been deploying and selling ERP Next to other
companies before the ERP team and the business was
transferred to TTPL based on the guidance issued by DHI.
TTPL has been developing the ERP Next on an opei-source
platform and customization on the software are done by the
TTPL ERP team.

There is a Bhutanese touch on the software and more
importantly at a national level, the money does not flow out of
the country. With the above reasons the decision on the
deployment of ERP Next by TTPL was made. Considering the
above reasons, the management decision to invest in new ERP
was made.

Therefore, we would like to request the audit team to kindly
consider the recommendation as implemented

Non-investment of balance gratuity
provisions - Nu. 99,116,280.00.

As per the books of accounts and the
actuarial valuation of gratuity as at 31st
December 2020 under financial reporting
of BAS 19, Bhutan Telecom Limited has
total accumulated gratuity provision of
Nu. 222,947,203.00 till financial year 2020.
Out of which Nu. 123,830.920.63 were
maintained with one of the insurance
company as plan assets with return of 8%

During the year, BT has deposited Nu. 223,208,024.88 with
Bhutan Insurance Limited (BIL) in Gratuity Account scheme
in the month of September,2021, above amount is inclusive of
Nu. 124,091,745.08 transferred from Royal Insurance
Corporation of Bhutan Limited (RICBL) as RICBL refused to
renew the gratuity scheme of BT on the ground that company
is incurring losses from the above scheme and balance of
Nu.99,116,280.00 is accumulated gratuity created in our
books of accounts.

Hence, We have deposited entire gratuity fund with BIL for the
period of two years at an interest rate of 5.5 percent per

As per the
recommendation  from
previous auditor, BTL
management has
deposited amounting
to Nu.223,208,024.88
in Bhutan Insurance
limited as  gratuity
fund. Thus, memo will
not be pursued further.

Implemented

78




interest per annum on the contribution.

However, depositing of gratuity in one of
the insurance company was discontinued
since 2018 and the gratuity were
provisioned only in financial
statement/books of account of the
Company. Hence, the gratuity provision
amounting to Nu. 99,116,280.00 (Nu.
222,947,203.00 - 123,830.920.63) were not
invested.

Since the gratuity provision is not invested
through specific gratuity account, the tax
authority has not allowed the gratuity to
be expensed out excluding the ones which
were directly paid to the retiring
employees. As such Nu.7,736,549.00 were
disallowed as per income tax act 2001 in
2019 and Nu. 9,608163.00 in 2020
respectively. Tax savings on past two
financial years amounts to Nu.5,203,413.60
if BT maintained gratuity fund account
with relevant financial institutions as BT
did in the past.

Therefore, it may be better to explore other
Financial Institutes if the insurance
company is not accepting to take the fund
from gratuity provision.

annum, BIL has also provided an option to BT to deposit
annual gratuity liability to this scheme during the two
year period.
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